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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q

X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTNOL3 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED: MARCH 31, 2011
OR

[] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SE{ON 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM TO

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER: 1-33796

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its Gmart

MARYLAND 26-0630461
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (IRS Employer Identification No

1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK
(Address of principal executive offices)

10036
(Zip Code)

(646) 454-3759
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area yode

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant éb)filed all documents and reports required talbd by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preagdid months (or for such shorter period that thgi®eant was required to file such
reports), and (2) has been subject to such filsggirements for the past 90 days:
Yes¥l No[O

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant masnétted electronically and posted on its corpokéib site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRiie 405 of Regulation S-T (Section 232.405 & thapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the regigtwas required to submit and post such files).

YesM NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantl&gge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, aocelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definition of “accelerated filer,”ra accelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting camy’ in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filé¥l  Accelerated filer0 Non-accelerated fileEl Smaller reporting compariy
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Brgfe Act).
Yes NoM
APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE ISSUERS:
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&tiiedassuer’s classes of common stock, as ofdbiedracticable date:

Class Outstanding at May 9, 20!
Common Stock, $.01 par val 1,027,125,67¢
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag

March 31, 2011

December 31,

(unaudited’ 2010 (1)

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 16,29 $ 7,17
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair vall

Senior ($143.4 million and $484.1 million resultiftgm consolidation of VIEs 329,78: 987,68!

Subordinated ($1.6 billion and $1.5 billion resudtifrom consolidation of VIEs 2,266,56! 2,210,85!

Senior, no-retained (held in consolidated VIE 2,368,211 2,330,56!
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair val 4,879,38. 2,133,58
Securitized loans held for investment (held in adidsted VIES), net of allowance for loan losses «
$8.0 million and $6.6 million, respective 326,29! 353,53:
Receivable for investments sc 6,192 -
Accrued interest receivab 58,57( 49,08¢
Other asset 1,27(C 1,21z
Interest rate swaps, at fair val 5,87¢€ -
Total asset $ 10,258,43 $ 8,073,701
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RMBS ($4.1 billieh$d..7 billion of RMBS pledged as collater:
respectively’ $ 3,870,40 $ 1,600,07:
Repurchase agreements, non-Agency RMBS ($0 ar@l424illion of RMBS pledged as collateral
respectively’ - 208,71¢
Securitized debt issued by consolidated VIEs, ($28&dillion and $302.9 million of securitized loan
pledged as collateral, respective 266,36: 289,23
Securitized debt issued by consolidated VIEs, regained ($2.4 billion and $2.3 billion of non-
retained RMBS pledged as collateral, respectiv 2,091,37. 1,956,07
Payable for investments purchas 311,61( 127,69:
Accrued interest payab 12,54: 11,64
Dividends payabli 143,67t 174,44:
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 1,23¢ 39:¢
Investment management fees payable to affi 12,801 12,42
Interest rate swaps, at fair value ($13.6 milliowl $12.8 million of RMBS pledged as collateral,
respectively’ 6,03: 9,98¢
Total liabilities $ 6,716,04 $ 4,390,69:
Commitments and Contingencies (Note - -
Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1,50000006hares authorized, 1,027,107,362 and
1,027,034,357 shares issued and outstanding, tésgg $ 10,26: $ 10,26:
Additional paic-in-capital 3,602,33! 3,601,891
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li 113,89¢ 274,65:
Retained earnings (accumulated defi (184,110 (203,796
Total stockholders' equit $ 3,542,391 $ 3,683,001
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 10,258,43 $ 8,073,70!

(1) Derived from the audited consolidated finansiatements at December 31, 2C
See notes to consolidated financial statem




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag
(unaudited

For the Quarter Ende
March 31, 201(

March 31, 201:

Net Interest Income:

Interest incom: $ 206,57: $ 128,98:
Interest expens 10,84¢ 7,374
Interest income, ne¢-retainec 21,15¢ 50,86:
Interest expense, n-retainec 27,57t 33,83(
Net interest income (expens 189,30¢ 138,64
Other-than-temporary impairments:

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (4,205 (22,687
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in other compredie income (loss 1,58( 20,14:
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (2,625 (2,544
Other gains (losses)

Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ 9,831 -
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investment: 2,744 34z
Realized losses on principal w-downs of no-Agency RMBS (19,520 (949
Total other gains (losse (6,945 (607)
Net investment income (los 179,73¢ 135,49(
Other expenses

Management fe 12,75( 8,11«
Provision for loan losse 1,44z 60€
General and administrative expen 1,487 1,16(
Total other expense 15,67¢ 9,88(
Income (loss) before income taxes 164,06( 125,61(
Income taxe: 69¢ -
Net income (loss) $ 163,36: $ 125,61(
Net income (loss) per shi-basic and dilute $ 0.1€ $ 0.1¢
Weighted average number of shares outstarbasic and dilute 1,027,063,05 670,371,02
Comprehensive income (loss):

Net income (loss $ 163,36. $ 125,61(
Other comprehensive income (los

Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, n (180,159 241,58:
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includatkt income (loss) for other-than-temporary ir

impairment losse 2,62¢ 2,54¢
Reclassification adjustment for realized lossein&ancluded in net income (los 16,77¢ 607
Other comprehensive income (lo: (160,752 244.73.
Comprehensive income (los $ 2,61C $ 370,34.

See notes to consolidated financial statem




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

(unaudited
Accumulated Retained
Common Additional Earnings
Stock Paid-in Comprehensiv  (Accumulate:
Par Value Capital Income (Loss Deficit) Total
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 6,69: $ 2,290,61- $ (70,999 2,126,56;
Net income (loss - - 125,61( 125,61(
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi - - (88,187) (88,187
Other comprehensive income (lo: - - - 244.73.
Proceeds from common stock offerir - (200 - (200
Restricted stock gran 1 122 - 122
Common dividends declared, $0.17 per sl - - (113,79 (113,79)
Balance, March 31, 201 $ 6,694 2,290,63! (147,36 2,294,94
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,26 3,601,891 274,65 $ (203,799 3,683,001
Net income (loss - - 163,36 163,36:
Other comprehensive income (lo - - - (160,757
Proceeds from direct purchase and dividend reinves 1 31C - 311
Proceeds from common stock offerir 11 - 11
Restricted stock gran - 12¢ - 12¢
Common dividends declared, $0.14 per sl - - (143,676 (143,679
Balance, March 31, 201 $ 10,26: 3,602,33! (184,110 3,542,39

See notes to consolidated financial statem




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousand:
(unaudited

For the Quarter
Ended March

For the Quarter
Ended March

31, 31,
2011 2010

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss $ 163,36: $ 125,61(
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by (used in) operating activitie
(Accretion) amortization of investment discountsfpiums (64,42%) (53,847
Unrealized losses (gains) on interest rate s\ (9,83)) -
Realized losses (gains) on sales of investn (2,749 (342)
Realized losses on principal w-downs of no-Agency RMBS 19,52( 94¢
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 2,62¢ 2,54¢
Provision for loan losse 1,44z 60€
Restricted stock gran 12¢ 12z
Changes in operating asse

Decrease (increase) in accrued interest reder (9,169 (6,509

Decrease (increase) in other as (58) 43
Changes in operating liabilitie

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable andl@thiities 841 17

Increase (decrease) in investment managemenpésable to affiliate 38t (40%)

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest pa 902 6,45¢€
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 102,98: $ 75,25(
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
MortgageBacked Securities portfolic

Purchase $ (3,095,71) $ (442,919

Sales 646,35t 44,21

Principal payment 152,16¢ 184,83:
Mortgage-Backed Securities portfolio, n-retained:

Principal payment 178,08« 145,42:
Securitized loans

Principal payment 25,33] 28,66¢
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi $ (2,093,76) $ (39,790
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from repurchase agreem $ 4,563,68. $ 6,776,12

Payments on repurchase agreem (2,502,07) (7,065,29)

Net proceeds from common stock offeril 11 (200

Payments on securitized debt borrowi (22,877) (26,577)

Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings.-retained 311,01 498,72(

Payments on securitized debt borrowings-retainec (175,719 (84,639

Net proceeds from direct purchase and dividem/estmen 311 -

Common dividends pa (174,445 (113,789
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi $ 1,999,90 $ (15,539
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 9,127 19,92
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 7,17: 24,27
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 16,29 $ 44 .20(




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
(dollars in thousand:

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

(unaudited

Interest pait $ 37,52 $ 34,74¢

Taxes pait $ 69 $ -
Non-cash investing activities:

Receivable for investments s¢ $ 6,192 $ 47,18t

Payable for investments purcha: $ 311,61 $ 41,82

Net change in unrealized gain on avail-for sale securitie $ (160,75) $ 244,73.
Non-cash financing activities:

Common dividends declared, not yet ¢ $ 143,67¢ $ 113,79:

See notes to consolidated financial statem




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED MARCH 31, 2011
(unaudited)

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (“Companwas organized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The fgizoyym commenced operations
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial jpubffering. The Company has elected to be taa®d real estate investment tt
(“REIT"), under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 amended. As long as the Company qualifiesREsla, the Company will generally
not be subject to U.S. federal or state corpomated on its income to the extent that the Compastyilalites at least 90% of its taxable net
income to its stockholders. In July 2008, the Camypformed Chimera Securities Holdings, LLC, a ijrolwned subsidiary. In June 2009,
the Company formed Chimera Asset Holding LLC andh@hna Holding LLC, both wholly-owned subsidiaries. January 2010, the
Company formed Chimera Special Holding LLC, whislaiwholly-owned subsidiary of Chimera Asset Haddlh C. In July 2010, the
Company formed CIM Trading Company LLC, a wholly+wed subsidiary. Chimera Securities Holdings, LOGimera Asset Holding LLC,
Chimera Holding LLC, and Chimera Special HoldingQ are qualified REIT subsidiaries. CIM Trading Guany LLC is a taxable REIT
subsidiary (“TRS”"). Annaly Capital Management, I{fAnnaly”) owns approximately 4.38% of the Comp&gommon shares. The
Company is managed by Fixed Income Discount Adyi€tampany (“FIDAC"), an investment advisor registmith the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”). FIDAC is a wholly-as¢hsubsidiary of Annaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of the Company and its direct and indiwdwblly-owned subsidiaries. All
intercompany balances and transactions have barimaied.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handasiddeposited overnight in money market funds.

(c) Non-Agency and Agency Residential Mortgage-Baekl Securities

The Company invests in residential mortgage-baskeedrities (‘RMBS”) representing interests in obtigns backed by pools of
mortgage loans. The Company delineates betweehgdncy RMBS, (2) non-Agency RMBS, and (3) non-Aggmon-retained securities as
follows: The Agency RMBS are mortgage pass-throctificates, collateralized mortgage obligati¢f@MOs”), and other mortgage-
backed securities representing interests in ogabtins backed by pools of mortgage loans issugdiaranteed as to principal and/or interest
repayment by agencies of the U.S. Government arédlg chartered corporations such Ginnie Mae, #ieetflac or Fannie Mae. The non-
Agency RMBS portfolio is not issued or guarantegd-bnnie Mae, Freddie Mac, or Ginnie Mae and isetfoee subject to credit risk. Non-
Agency, non-retained securities are further dedaiteNote 8 to these consolidated financial statgme

The Company holds its RMBS as available-for-saleords investments at estimated fair value as itbestin Note 5 of these
consolidated financial statements, and includesalized gains and losses in other comprehensiwgriagloss) in the consolidated statem
of operations and comprehensive income (loss)mRnme to time, as part of the overall managemeéitsgortfolio, the Company may sell
any of its RMBS investments and recognize a redlgan or loss as a component of earnings in theal@ated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss) utilizing the speddentification method.

Interest income on RMBS is computed on the remgipitincipal balance of the investment securityerfium or discount
amortization/accretion on Agency RMBS is recogniaedr the life of the investment using the effeetinterest method Premium or
discount amortization/accretion on non-Agency RM88&cognized in accordance with Accounting Stadisl&odification (“ASC”) 325-40,
Investment-Other: Beneficial Interestsin Securitized Financial Assets. For non-Agency RMBS, the Company estimateseatithe of
purchase expected future cash flows, prepaymeetsperedit losses, loss severity, and loss tirhaged on the Company’s observation of
available market data, its experience, and thectille judgment of its management team to deterthieeffective interest rate on the
RMBS. Not less than quarterly, the Company reetak; and if necessary, makes adjustments toatgsas utilizing internal models,
external market research and sources in conjunetitnits view on performance in the non-Agency R®Bector. Changes to the
Company’s assumptions subsequent to the purchésendg increase or decrease the amortization/amcret premiums or discounts which
affects interest income. Changes to assumptiatsigtcrease expected future cash flows may resathier-than-temporary impairment
(“OTTI").




The Company evaluates each investment in its RM@8qtio for OTTI quarterly or more often if markebnditions warrant. The
Company determines if it (1) has the intent to g&llsecurity, (2) is more likely than not thawitl be required to sell the securities before
recovery, or (3) does not expect to recover thigeeamortized cost basis of the security. Furttier,security is analyzed for credit loss by
comparing the difference between the present vaflwash flows expected to be collected and the tipeok cost basis. The credit loss, if any,
will then be recognized in earnings, while the hataof impairment related to other factors willreeognized in other comprehensive income
(loss).

(d) Securitized Loans Held for Investment
The Company'’s securitized residential mortgagedame comprised of fixed-rate and variable-ratagoaviortgage loans are
designated as held for investment, recorded om tdatle, and are carried at their principal balantstanding, plus any premiums or
discounts, less allowances for loan losses. Isténeome on loans held for investment is recoghaeer the life of the investment using the
effective interest method. Income recognitionuspended for loans when, in the opinion of managenaefull recovery of income and
principal becomes doubtful. Income recognitioreisumed when the loan becomes contractually cuarehperformance is demonstrated to
be resumed. The Company estimates fair valueairgized loans as described in Note 5 of thesealigated financial statements.

(e) Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has established an allowance for lnssek at a level that management believes is aelgased on an evaluation of
known and inherent risks related to the Compargéas Iportfolio. The estimate is based on a vanéfactors including current economic
conditions, industry loss experience, the loanioatpr’'s loss experience, credit quality trendanlgortfolio composition, delinquency trends,
national and local economic trends, national unegrpkent data, changes in housing appreciation aredegion and whether specific
geographic areas where the Company has significantconcentrations are experiencing adverse ecicrmnditions and events such as
natural disasters that may affect the local econonproperty values. Upon purchase of a pool ofispghe Company obtains written
representations and warranties from the selletsttieaCompany could be reimbursed for the valugaefloan if the loan fails to meet the
agreed upon origination standards. While the Combas little history of its own to establish |laa@ends, delinquency trends of the
originators and the current market conditions aidetermining the allowance for loan losses. The@any has created an unallocated
provision for probable loan losses estimated asregmtage of the remaining unpaid principal balacéhe loans. Management's estimate is
based on historical experience of similarly undétem pools in conjunction with current and expeatearket trends.

When the Company determines it is probable thatiBpeontractually due amounts are uncollectilthes amount is considered
impaired. Where impairment is indicated, a vahmtivrite-off is measured based upon the excedseofdcorded investment over the net fair
value of the collateral, reduced by selling cogtay deficiency between the carrying amount of agesand the net sales price of repossesset
collateral is charged to the allowance for loarséss

(f) Repurchase Agreements

The Company may finance the acquisition of its strreent securities through the use of repurchaseagnts. Repurchase
agreements are treated as collateralized finaricamgactions and are carried at their contractualats, including accrued interest, as
specified in the respective agreements.

(9) Securitized Debt and Securitized Debt, Non-Reiaed

The Company has issued securitized debt to finascesidential mortgage loan portfolio and haseeuritized RMBS to finance a
portion of its RMBS portfolio. Certain transactoimvolving residential mortgage loans are accailifiie as financings, and are recorded as
an asset called “Securitized loans held for invesitthand the corresponding debt as “Securitized"delthe consolidated statements of
financial condition. These securitizations ardatetalized by residential adjustable or fixed ra@rtgage loans that have been placed in a
trust and pay interest and principal payments éoditbt holders of that securitization. Re-se@aiitbn transactions classified as “Securitized
debt, non-retained” reflect the transfer to a tafdtxed or adjustable rate RMBS which are classlifas “Non-Agency Mortgage-Backed
Securities Senior, non-retained” that pay inteagst principal payments to the debt holders of tbagecuritization. Re-securitization
transactions completed by the Company are accotioted financings pursuant to ASC 8Tnsolidation . The holders of Securitized debt
and Securitized debt, non-retained have no recdaree Company, and the Company does not receivéngerest or principal paid on such
debt. The Company estimates fair value of seeedtidebt and securitized debt, non-retained asideddn Note 5 to these consolidated
financial statements. The associated liabilitiescarried at amortized cost.




(h) Fair Value Disclosure
A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdte Company to fair value its financial instrurteeis included in Note 5 to
these consolidated financial statements.

(i) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Adivity

The Company’s policies permit it to enter into gative contracts, including interest rate swapsiatetest rate caps, as a means of
mitigating its interest rate risk. The Company intte to use interest rate derivative instrumentsitmate interest rate risk rather than to
enhance returns. Interest rate swaps are recasleither assets or liabilities in the consolidatadement of financial condition, and
measured at fair value with realized and unrealgaids and losses recognized in earnings. The @oyngstimates fair value of interest rate
swaps as described in Note 5 of these consolidatadcial statements.

(j) Sales, Securitizations, and Re-Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactiong/hich it sells financial assets, such as RMBSitgame loans and other
assets. Gains and losses on sales of assetsnapeitedl on the specific identification method whgréte Company records a gain or loss on
the difference between the carrying value of treetaand the proceeds from the sale. In addittenCompany from time to time securitize:
re-securitizes assets and sells tranches in thiy meeuritized assets. These transactions magdweded as either a sale and the assets
contributed to the securitization are removed ftbmconsolidated statements of financial conditind a gain or loss is recognized, or as a
financing whereby the assets contributed to thariteration are not derecognized but rather thiilitées issued by the securitization are
recorded to reflect the term financing of the assét these securitizations and re-securitizatittes Company may retain senior or
subordinated interests in the securitized andAseriritized assets.

(k) Income Taxes

The Company qualifies to be taxed as a REIT, aackfore it generally will not be subject to corpgerdederal, or state income tay
the extent that qualifying distributions are manlstockholders and the REIT requirements, includigain asset, income, distribution and
stock ownership tests are met. If the Compangdaib qualify as a REIT and did not qualify forteém statutory relief provisions, the
Company would be subject to federal, state and lncame taxes and may be precluded from qualifgiag REIT for the subsequent four
taxable years following the year in which the RLfalification was lost. The Company and its sulbsjdCIM Trading Company LLC made
a joint election to treat the subsidiary as a ts&x&EIT subsidiary. As such, CIM Trading CompanyCLis taxable as a domestic C
corporation and subject to federal, state, and incame taxes based upon its taxable income.

The provisions of FASB ASC 74Mcome Taxes, clarify the accounting for uncertainty in inconages recognized in financial
statements and prescribe a recognition threshadraasurement attribute for tax positions takeexpected to be taken on a tax
return. FASB ASC 740 also requires that interest genalties related to unrecognized tax beneditsebognized in financial statements. The
Company does not have any unrecognized tax betleditsvould affect its financial position. Thu®, accruals for penalties and interest w
necessary as of March 31, 2011.

() Net Income per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per shadévltling net income for the period by the weight®everage shares of its
common stock outstanding for that period. Dilutedincome per share takes into account the effeditutive instruments, such as stock
options, but uses the average share price forahedin determining the number of incremental ekdhat are to be added to the weighted
average number of shares outstanding. The Contpaohyio potentially dilutive securities outstandihging the periods presented.




(m) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock based compensatiarda granted to the employees of FIDAC and itiats in accordance with
ASC 505-50Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employees. Accounting principles generally accepted in theted States of America
(“GAAP”) requires the Company to measure the faiue of the equity instrument using the stock @i@ed other measurement assumptions
as of the earlier of either the date at which dgoerance commitment by the counterparty is readretie date at which the counterparty’s
performance is complete. Compensation expenstedda the grants of stock and stock options isgaized over the vesting period of such
grants based on the fair value of the stock orvéisting date.

(n) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statiets in conformity with GAAP requires managemennike estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etassd liabilities and disclosure of contingersieds and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amountsvefmges and expenses during the reporting perioelmidst significant estimates are related
to the following: all investment securities clagxif as available-for-sale and interest rate swepsegorted at their estimated fair value; all
investment securities are amortized/accreted baisatklds that incorporate management’s assumptsris the expected performance of the
investment over time; and the loan loss proviseftects management estimates with regard to expéasses of the securitized loan
portfolio. Actual results could differ from thosstimates.

(o) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Assets

Receivables (ASC 310)

In July 2010, the FASB released ASU 2010-20, whidtresses disclosures about the credit qualitinah€ing receivables and the
allowance for credit losses. The purpose of tpate is to provide greater transparency regartiegllowance for credit losses and the
credit quality of financing receivables as weltasssist in the assessment of credit risk expesamd evaluation of the adequacy of
allowances for credit losses. Additional disclesumust be provided on a disaggregated basis.ufitiete defines two levels of
disaggregation — portfolio segment and class @frfoing receivable. Additionally, the update regsiidisclosure of credit quality indicators,
past due information and modifications of financiegeivables. The update is not applicable tagage banking activities (loans originated
or purchased for resale to investors); derivatingtruments; debt securities; a transferors intémesecuritization transactions accounted fc
sales under ASC 860; and purchased beneficiakeistiein securitized financial assets. This updaie effective for the Company for interim
or annual periods ending on or after December @502 Adoption of this guidance results in increbfsmtnote disclosure in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Broad Transactions

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASC 820)

In January 2010, FASB issued ASU 20®which increases disclosures regarding the &lirevof assets. A majority of this upc
was effective for the Company on January 1, 2018owever, the guidance also required that thda@lisces on any Level 3 assets present
separately information about purchases, salesaime®s and settlements. In other words, Level &@sisse presented on a gross basis rather
than as one net number. This portion of the guidas effective for the Company on January 1, 204doption of this portion of the
guidance results in increased footnote disclosuteeé Company'’s consolidated financial statementhe extent that Level 3 assets are held.




Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860)

In April 2011, FASB issued ASU 2011-03 regardinguehase agreements. In a typical repurchaseragradransaction, an entity
transfers financial assets to a counterparty ithaxge for cash with an agreement for the countgrpareturn the same or equivalent
financial assets for a fixed price in the futuRrior to this update one of the factors in detemgjrwhether sale treatment could be used was
whether the transferor maintained effective contfdhe transferred assets and in order to dahgotransferor must have the ability to
repurchase such assets. Based on this update, E&®Bided that the assessment of effective costralild focus on a transferor’s
contractual rights and obligations with respedramsferred financial assets, rather than on whetigetransferor has the practical ability to
perform in accordance with those rights or obligiasi. Therefore, this update removes the transéeability criterion from consideration of
effective control. This update is effective foetfirst interim or annual period beginning on caeaDecember 15, 2011. As the Company
records repurchase agreements as secured borroavidgsot sales, this update will have no effecthenCompany’s consolidated financial
statements.

3. Mortgage-Backed Securities

The following tables present the principal valueamnortized premium, unamortized discount, grossalired gain, gross unrealized
loss, and fair value of the Company’s availabledale RMBS portfolio as of March 31, 2011 and Deben81, 2010, at fair value by asset
class. The RMBS portfolio is composed of Agencg anon-Agency RMBS collateralized by residential tgage loans. The Agency RMBS
are mortgage pass-through certificates, CMOs, #mel anortgage-backed securities representing stieie or obligations backed by pools of
mortgage loans issued or guaranteed by Fannie fMaddie Mac, or Ginnie Mae. The non-Agency RMB&fpto is not issued or
guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, or Ginnie Ml is therefore subject to credit risk. The @any classifies its non-Agency RMBS
into senior, subordinated, and senior, non-retainegtests. Senior interests in non-Agency RMBSansidered to be entitled to the first
principal repayments in their pro-rata ownershtgiiests. Securities identified as senior, nonitethhave been consolidated pursuant to the
adoption of ASC 810. See Note 8 of these cong@iifinancial statements for a detailed discussion.

March 31, 201:
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Gross

Principal Unamortized Unamortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Value Premium Discount Gain Loss Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 9,61z $ 409,22: $ (109 $ 11,81¢ % (100,767) $ 329,78
Subordinatet 4,917,241 58,08: (2,640,12) 203,91¢ (272,54°) 2,266,56!
Senior, no-retained 2,136,66! 57,53( (98,35¢) 303,54« (31,179 2,368,21.
Agency RMBS 4,749,06. 131,37¢ (162) 36,03¢ (36,929 4,879,38.
Total $ 11,81258 $ 656,21, $ (2,738,75) $ 555,31: $ (441,41) $  9,843,93

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Gross

Principal Unamortized Unamortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Value Premium Discount Gain Loss Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 664,25. $ 420,65 $ (9,320 $ 21,75¢ $ (109,66) $ 987,68!
Subordinatet 4,962,82! 58,29¢ (2,789,90i) 206,18 (226,55) 2,210,85!
Senior, no-retained 2,008,16' 79,73( (109,619 428,21 (75,929 2,330,56!
Agency RMBS 2,035,82: 67,134 - 47,715 (17,090 2,133,58.
Total $ 9,671,070 $ 625,81¢ $ (2,908,84) $ 703,87 $ (429,22 $  7,662,69!

The following tables present the gross unrealinsdds and estimated fair value of the Company’s RMBlength of time that such
securities have been in a continuous unrealizedgdosition at March 31, 2011 and December 31, 20t® securities in an unrealized loss
position have been evaluated by the Company forl@§Tiscussed in the paragraphs following thdsie$a Five securities have been in a
continuous unrealized loss position for greaten tingelve months, all of which are subordinatedriesés held by the Company that, although
performing in line with the Company’s expectatioae in unrealized loss position due to signifiaaatrket value declines consistent with
similar asset classes.
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March 31, 201:
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized Loss Position Fc

Less than 12 Montt 12 Months or More Total
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized

RMBS Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Non-Agency RMBS

Senior $ 179,96¢ $ (48,929 $ 29477 $ (51,839 $ 209,44. $ (100,76

Subordinatec 1,150,93: (237,33) 62,01: (35,219 1,212,94! (272,54

Senior, no-retained 725,89} (31,044 22,47°¢ (133 748,37( (31,179
Agency 3,198,39I (36,929 - - 3,198,39I (36,929
Total $ 5,255,18 $ (354,229 $ 113,96: $ (87,189 $ 5,369,14i $ (441,419

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized Loss Position Fc
Less than 12 Montt 12 Months or More Total
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized

RMBS Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Non-Agency RMBS

Senior $ 549,96¢ $ (109,669 $ - 3 - $ 549,96¢ $ (109,667

Subordinatec 1,178,49: (217,224 12,82¢ (9,329 1,191,31 (226,55

Senior, no-retained 764,72¢ (75,927 - - 764,72¢ (75,927
Agency 600,46« (17,090 - - 600,46« (17,090
Total $ 3,093,64' $ (419,899 $ 12,82¢ $ (9,329 $ 3,106,47 $ (429,22)

The Company recorded a $2.6 million other-than-temary credit impairment during the quarter endeddi&81, 2011 on
investments where the expected future cash floveed&in non-Agency RMBS were less than their ainedtcost basis. The impairment
recorded during the quarter ended March 31, 20Xlrelated to fourteen securities. The impaire@$tments were interests in non-Agency
RMBS. As of March 31, 2011, the impaired secusitiad cumulative losses ranging from 0% up to It#h®ee-month prepayments speeds
between 0 and 69 Constant Prepayment Rate (“CBR*) day delinquencies between 0% and 45% of thel@dance, and weighted average
FICO scores on the pools between 666 and 753.

The Company evaluates each investment in its RM@8qtio for OTTI quarterly or more often if markebnditions warrant. The
amortized cost of each investment in an unrealiassl position is compared to the present valuxpéeted future cash flows of the position.
In estimating future cash flows, the Company evaiddhe non-Agency RMBS for OTTI by consideringidgliencies, credit losses, loss
severities, prepayment speeds, geographic datavier characteristics, loan to value ratios, seiagpand credit support in conjunction with
broader macroeconomic expectations such as home giepreciation, expectations of future delinquesaind loss severities and the abilit
the borrower to refinance or modify their loangafter determining the expected future cash flafvthe position, the amortized cost of the
security is less than the present value of its ebguefuture cash flows, an other-than-temporarditimpairment has occurred. If the
Company does not intend to sell and is not momdylikhan not required to sell the debt securitpipto its anticipated recovery, the credit
loss, if any, is recognized in earnings, while laégance of impairment related to other factore@eognized in other comprehensive income
(loss). If the Company intends to sell the debtsity, or will be more likely than not required $ell the security before its anticipated
recovery, the full unrealized loss is recognizedannings. The determination cannot be overcomadayagement judgment of the probab
of collecting all cash flows previously projected.summary of the OTTI included in earnings for thearters ended March 31, 2011 and
2010 is presented below.
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March 31,201  March 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 22,67¢ $ 9,99¢
Additions:

Other-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 98¢ 2,462

Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsnen securities with

previously recognized ott-thar-temporary impairment 1,637 82
Cumulative credit loss ending balar $ 2529¢ $ 12,54(

The following tables present details of each aslsets in the Company’s RMBS portfolio at March 2011 and December 31,
2010. The principal or notional value represen¢sihterest income earning balance of each cléls.weighted average amortized cost, fair
value, coupon, yield, and CPR at period-end arghted by each investment’s respective principaildmat value in the asset class. The
figure presenting the annualized yield over theenirquarter is the annualized interest incomeezham the asset class during the quarter,
divided by the average of the beginning and endingrtized cost of the asset class.

March 31, 201:

Weighted
Principal  Weighted Average Weighted
or Average Weighted Yield Average
Notional ~Amortized Weighted Average (Loss Annualizec Month
Value at Cost Basi: Average Fair Coupona  Adjusted) Yield Over CPR at
Period- at Period- Value at Period- at Period- Current Period-
End End Perioc-End End End Quarter* End
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 9612 $ 988t $ 94.2 1.272% 2.6€% 2.21% 6%
Senior, interest onl $6,352,25 $ 6.44 $ 5.0t 2.02% 12.91% 4.7¢% 17%
Subordinatet $4,917,241 $ 468t $ 45.4¢ 4.12% 14.4% 24.21% 16%
Subordinated, interest on $ 30342° $ 9.9 $ 10.5¢ 2.9%% 26.0€6% 35.8% 14%
Senior, no-retainec $2,136,660 $ 98.0¢ $ 110.8¢ (1) 5.21% 4.8t% 3.5(% 16%
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie  $4,800,91: $ 102.7¢ $ 102.7¢ 4.71% 4.2¢% 4.48% 20%
Securitized loan
Senior $ 273,17¢ $ 101.1¢ $ 101.1¢ 5.4€% 5.5(% 4.92% 25%
Senior, interest onl $ 288,66: $ 0.01 $ 0.01 0.41% 100.0%  4586.6% 24%
Subordinatet $ 57,47 $ 100.6¢ $ 100.6¢ 5.25% -1.95% 4.05% 25%

* Includes the effect of realized loss on principaite-downs.
(1) See discussion of Financial Condition on paf#oB a review of GAAP book valu
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December 31, 201

Weighted
Principal Weighted Average Weighted
or Average Weighted Yield Average
Notional ~ Amortized Weighted Average (Loss Annualizec Month
Value at Cost Basi Average Coupona Adjusted) Yield Over CPR at
Period-  at Period- Fair Valueat  Period- at Period- Current Period-
End End Perioc-End End End Quarter* End
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 664,25. $ 99.6¢ $ 101.5¢ 4.48% 4.65% 5.05% 16%
Senior, interest onl $5,929,63 $ 6.9¢ $ 5.2¢ 1.74% 14.71% 29.0:% 16%
Subordinatet $4,962,820 $ 4435 $  43.8¢t 4.11% 16.78% 25.11% 15%
Subordinated, interest on $ 304,99 $ 9.9t $ 10381 3.05% 27.6(% 24.62% 16%
Senior, no-retainecd $2,008,160 $ 9851 $ 116.0% (1) 5.17% 4.3¢% 6.85% 15%
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie  $2,092,46! $ 103.3( $ 104.8( 5.05% 4.51% 3.34% 24%
Securitized loan
Senior $ 296,45¢ $ 101.1¢ $ 101.1¢ 5.5(% 5.5% 4.82% 28%
Senior, interest onl $ 313,72( $ 0.01 $ 0.01 0.41% 100.0(% 3795.9% 29%
Subordinatet $ 5954( $ 100.9¢ $ 100.9: 5.3€% 2.85% 5.72% 30%

* Includes the effect of realized loss on principaite-downs.
(1) See discussion of Financial Condition on pagéoB a review of GAAP book valu

The Company’s investment guidelines place no @&giris on the credit rating of the assets the Camjgmable to hold in its
portfolio. The portfolio is most heavily weightéal contain RMBS with credit risk. The Company cbes assets for the portfolio after
carefully evaluating each investment’s risk profile

March 31, 201 December 31, 20:

AAA 13.25% 41.25%
AA 4.98% 7.91%
A 1.26% 1.92%
BBB 0.64% 0.80%
BB 0.01% 0.01%
B 0.00% 0.01%
Below B or not rate! 79.86Y 48.10%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

The table above reflects the credit rating of tlen@any’s consolidated RMBS portfolio. At March 2011, approximately 18% of
the AAA, AA, and A securities balance reflectedhe table above include senior, non-retained, ngapdy RMBS.

The AAA rated assets in the RMBS portfolio are prechantly Agency RMBS and senior non-retained naje#icy RMBS. As the
Company securitizes or re-securitizes assetspit@s the Below B or not rated percentages in t¢inéqbio to increase as the Company
typically retains the subordinated tranches ofdéhgpes of transactions.

Actual maturities of mortgage-backed securitiesgaerally shorter than stated contractual magsritiActual maturities of the
Company’s RMBS are affected by the contractuaklivEthe underlying mortgages, periodic paymentgrioficipal and prepayments of
principal. The following tables summarize the Camygs RMBS at March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2&t0rding to their estimated
weighted-average life classifications. The weigkawerage lives of the mortgapacked securities at March 31, 2011 and Decemhez(B1
in the tables below are based on consensus compstpayment speeds. The prepayment model consideent yield, forward yield,
steepness of the interest rate curve, current mgetgates, mortgage rates of the outstanding loan,age, margin and volatility.
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March 31, 201:
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi
Greater than one

year and less

Greater than five

Less than one yei than five year: years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 30,67¢ $ 297,36¢ $ 1,73t $ 329,78:
Subordinatec 82,24¢ 238,00: 1,946,31. 2,266,56!
Senior, no-retained 298,44¢ 1,872,12 197,64( 2,368,21.
Agency RMBS - 504,15’ 4,375,22! 4,879,38;
Total fair value $ 411,367 $ 2,911,65 $ 6,520,991 $ 9,843,93I
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 26,38t $ 371,71 % 20,62 $ 418,72!
Subordinatec 120,87 266,46: 1,947,85! 2,335,19:
Senior, no-retained 213,97¢ 1,699,131 182,73 2,095,84.
Agency RMBS - 481,96: 4,398,31. 4,880,27!
Total amortized cos $ 361,23t $ 2,81927 $ 6,549,52. $ 9,730,03
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Weighted Average Lifi
Greater than one
year and less Greater than five
Less than one yei than five year: years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 26,96: $ 587,07 $ 373,64¢ $ 987,68!
Subordinatec 7,941 218,98t 1,983,93. 2,210,85!
Senior, no-retained 200,46¢ 1,889,73, 240,36¢ 2,330,56!
Agency RMBS - 1,560,85! 572,72" 2,133,58.
Total fair value $ 235,37 $ 4,256,65. $ 3,170,67. $ 7,662,69'
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 26,92( % 584,85¢ $ 463,81( $ 1,075,58!
Subordinatec 11,07¢ 253,55¢ 1,966,58 2,231,222
Senior, no-retained 251,57¢ 1,500,95! 225,74 1,978,27:
Agency RMBS - 1,513,64- 589,31 2,102,95
Total amortized cos $ 289,57" $ 3,853,011 $ 3,245,45. $ 7,388,04!

The non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to cratik. The Company seeks to mitigate credit rightigh its asset selection
process. The non-Agency RMBS portfolio is primadbllateralized by what the Company classifieg\isA first lien mortgages. The
Company categorizes collateral as Alt-A regardtdsghether the loans were originally described @#ie” if the behavior of the collateral
when the Company purchased the security more tjpiasembles Alt-A. The Company defines Alt-A lkedéral characteristics to be when
the 60+ day delinquency bucket of the pool is gnetitan 5% and weighted average FICO scores aategtiian 650 at origination. At Mal
31, 2011, 99% of the non-Agency RMBS were Alt-Alatdral. At December 31, 2010, 99% of the non-AgyeRMBS were Alt-A
collateral. The non-Agency securities containethia portion of the portfolio have the followingltateral characteristics at March 31, 2011

and December 31, 2010.
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December 31,

March 31, 201: 2010

Number of securities in portfoli 527 581
Weighted average maturity (yea 27.2 27.4
Weighted average amortized loan to ve 72.£% 72.5%
Weighted average FIC 716.< 717.C
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 470.( $ 447.¢
Weighted average percentage owner occu 90.4% 83.2%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 63.5% 63.1%
Weighted average current credit enhancer 13.6% 16.(%
Weighted average geographic concentra CA 38.% CA 38.5%

FL 8.8% FL 8.9%

NY 5.2% NY 4.S%

NJ 24% VA 2.6%
VA 2.2% NJ 2.2%

The information presented in the table above inesugkenior, non-retained, non-Agency RMBS consdidiaursuant to the adoption
of ASC 810 on January 1, 2010 by the Company.

The table below presents origination year for toenfany’s portfolio of non-Agency RMBS at March 2011 and December 31,

2010.
Origination Year as a Percentage of
QOutstanding Principal Balani March 31, 201 December 31, 20:.
2004 0.1% 0.1%
2005 11.5% 13.4%
2006 27.0% 27.0%
2007 58.3% 56.1%
2008 3.1% 3.3%
2009 0.0% 0.1%
2010 0.0% 0.0%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

On January 29, 2010, the Company transferred $llidhtin principal value of its RMBS to the CSM®20-1R Trust in a re-
securitization transaction. This transaction vwearded as a “secured borrowing” pursuant to ASfiIcEo860 and 810. In this transaction,
the Company financed through the transaction $27illl®n of AAA-rated fixed rate bonds to third ggrinvestors for net proceeds of $268.1
million. The Company retained $391.9 million of Axated bonds, $1.0 billion in subordinated bondd the owner trust certificate, and
interest only bonds with a notional value of $1ilédn on the date of transfer. The subordinatedds and the owner trust certificate provide
credit support to the AAA-rated bonds. The borsdsied by the trust are collateralized by RMBS wexe transferred to the CSMC 2010-1R
Trust.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Compaid RMBS with a carrying value of $649.8 milliéor realized gains of $2.7
million. During the quarter ended March 31, 20th@ Company sold RMBS with a carrying value of $8%illion for realized gains of $342
thousand.

In addition, during the quarter ended March 31,12@he Company recorded non-recourse financing thitd party investors related
to re-securitizations executed in prior periodsie Tompany financed through these transactions.630flion of AAA-rated fixed rate
bonds with third party investors for net proceefi$311.0 million. During the quarter ended Mardh 3010, the Company financed through
these transactions $225.8 million of AAA-rated fixete bonds with third party investors for netqaeds of $227.4 million.

4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The following table represents the Company’s séized residential mortgage loans classified as fe#lthvestment at March 31,
2011 and December 31, 2010. At March 31, 2011scqipately 56% of the Company’s securitized loaresadjustable rate mortgage loans
and 44% are fixed rate mortgage loans. All ofabpistable rate loans held for investment are byddjustable rate mortgages
(“ARMs"). Hybrid ARMs are mortgages that have interest ritasare fixed for an initial period (typically #®, five, seven or ten years) ¢
thereafter reset at regular intervals subject teré@st rate caps. The periodic cap on all hybfRMS& in the securitized loan portfolio range
from 0.00% to 3.00% as of March 31, 2011 and Deerrfh, 2010. The securitized loans held for inwesit are carried at their principal
balance outstanding, plus premiums or discourgs,ad& allowance for loan losses.
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December 3:
March 31, 201 201(C
(dollars in thousand:

Securitized loans, at amortized c $ 334,311 $ 360,11¢
Less: allowance for loan loss 8,01¢ 6,58¢
Securitized loans held for investme $ 326,29' $ 353,53

The securitized loan portfolio is collateralizeddmyme, jumbo, first lien residential mortgagesadfich 56% were originated during
2008 and 42% were originated during 2007 and thmineing 2% of the loans were originated prior t®20 A summary of key characterist
of these loans follows.

December 31,

March 31, 201: 2010
Number of loan: 477 51z
Weighted average maturity (yea 26.2 26.€
Weighted average amortized loan to ve 74.8% 74.5%
Weighted average FIC 753 75&
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 693.5( $ 694.3(
Weighted average percentage owner occu 90.5% 90.5%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 57.&% 58.2%
Weighted average geographic concentra CA 33.7% CA 33.2%
FL 6.7% FL 6.7%
AZ 5.5 NJ 5.3%
NJ 5.4% IL 5.3%
IL 5.2% AZ 5.2%

The following table summarizes the changes in tlesvance for loan losses for the securitized mag&gkan portfolio during the
quarters ended March 31, 2011 and 2010.

March 31, 201 March 31, 201

Balance, beginning of peric $ 6,58¢ $ 4,551
Provision for loan losse 1,44: 60€
Charge-offs (10) (60%)
Balance, end of peric $ 8,01¢ $ 4,55¢

On a quarterly basis, the Company evaluates thguadg of its allowance for loan losses which icgkited to reflect management’
estimate of possible losses in the securitized pmatfolio at the reporting date. The Companptovision for loan losses considers the qu
of the collateral, performance of like collatei@hd expectations of future market conditions asrilgsd more fully in Note 2(e). The
Companys provision for loan losses is calculated on thistanding principal balance of the portfolio, 6CGaydielinquencies for like collate
and current and expected severities for similanglarwritten loans. The Company’s allowance fonl@sses at March 31, 2011 was $8.0
million, representing 243 basis points of the ppatbalance of the Company’s securitized mortdage portfolio. The Company’s
allowance for loan losses at December 31, 201086& million, representing 185 basis points ofghiacipal balance of the Company’s
securitized mortgage loan portfolio. At March 20,11, 2.60% of the securitized loans held for itment were greater than 60 days
delinquent and 2.28% were in some stage of bankyufireclosure, or were real estate owned. Atebewmer 31, 2010, 3.12% of the
securitized loans held for investment were greiditn 60 days delinquent and 0.93% were in some sthigankruptcy, foreclosure, or were
real estate owned.
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5. Fair Value Measurements

GAAP defines fair value, establishes a frameworknfieasuring fair value, establishes a three-leaklation hierarchy for disclosure
of fair value measurement and enhances disclosgrérements for fair value measurements. The tialuaierarchy is based upon the
transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asséability as of the measurement date. ThedHewels are defined as follows:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imglwquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fukttm of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.

The following discussion describes the methodokgidized by the Company to fair value its finaalénstruments by instrument
class.

Short-term I nstruments
The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuad interest receivable, dividends payable, attsopayable, and accrued inte
payable generally approximates estimated fair vdlieto the short term nature of these financstriiments.

Non-Agency and Agency RMBS

Generally, the Company determines the fair valuiésdhvestment securities utilizing a pricing mbthat incorporates such factors
as coupon, prepayment speeds, weighted averagedlfateral composition, borrower characteristegyected interest rates, life caps,
periodic caps, reset dates, collateral seasonkpgeoted losses, expected default severity, cratidecement, and other pertinent
factors. Certain very liquid asset classes, sschgency fixed-rate pass-throughs may be pricedigusidependent sources such as quoted
prices for “To-Be-Announced” securities. Managetreviews the fair values generated by the mamldetermine whether prices are
reflective of the current market. Management penfa validation of the fair value calculated bg pgricing model by comparing its result:
independent prices provided by dealers in the #&suand/or third party pricing services. The Qamy believes the observable inputs used
in its model in conjunction with dealer and/or thparty pricing services meets the criteria fossification as Level 2.

Non-Agency, Non-Retained RMBS

The non-Agency, non-retained securities reflecteithé consolidated financial statements are séesigonsolidated pursuant to the
Company'’s adoption of ASC 860 and ASC 810 on Janlia2010. These assets have been financed viithghrties without recourse to the
Company in the normal course of the Company’s pbotbptimization strategy. The Company fair vaukese assets as described above in
Non-Agency and Agency RMBS.  See Note 8 to these consolidated financial staésifor a detailed discussion of these securities.

Interest Rate Swaps

The Company obtains quotations from third partiedetermine the fair values of its interest ratagsv The Company compares the
third party quotations received to its own estinttéair value to evaluate for reasonableness. ddaer quotes incorporate common market
pricing methods, including a spread measuremetfigtd@ reasury yield curve or interest rate swap €@y well as underlying characteristic:
the particular contract. Interest rate swaps aréatedl by the Company by incorporating such facisrthe term to maturity, Treasury curve,
LIBOR rates, and the payment rates on the fixetiguoof the interest rate swaps.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtktsy management to ensure the changes are agteopts markets and
products develop and the pricing for certain prasib@comes more transparent, the Company will woatio refine its valuation
methodologies. The methods used to produce adhiewalculation may not be indicative of net zathle value or reflective of future fair
values. Furthermore, while the Company believegdtsation methods are appropriate and consistéhtather market participants, the use
of different methodologies, or assumptions, to aeire the fair value of certain financial instrurteenould result in a different estimate of
fair value at the reporting date. The Company usgasts that are current as of the measurement @hieh may include periods of market
dislocation, during which price transparency mayduhiced.
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During times of market dislocation, as has beereggpced for some time, the observability of priaed inputs can be reduced for
certain instruments. If dealers or independertigiservices are unable to provide a price foasset, or if the price provided by them is
deemed unreliable by the Company, then the asfidiewalued at its fair value as determined indjéath by the Company. In addition,
validating third party pricing for the Company’ss@stments may be more subjective as fewer partitspaay be willing to provide this
service to the Company. llliquid investments tytlic experience greater price volatility as a reatyrket does not exist. As fair value is not
an entity-specific measure and is a market-basprbaph which considers the value of an asset bititiafrom the perspective of a market
participant, observability of prices and inputs @any significantly from period to period. A cotidn such as this can cause instruments !
reclassified from Level 1 to Level 2 or Level 2ltevel 3 when the Company is unable to obtain thady pricing verification.

If at the valuation date, the fair value of an isiweent security is less than its amortized coiteatlate of the consolidated statement
of financial condition, the Company analyzes theestment security for OTTI. Management evaludtesGompany’s RMBS for OTTI at
least on a quarterly basis, and more frequentlywdm®nomic or market concerns warrant such evaluatConsideration is given to (1) the
length of time and the extent to which the fainnehas been lower than carrying value, (2) thentrdéthe Company to sell the investment
prior to recovery in fair value (3) whether the Gmany will more likely than not be required to gbk investment before the expected
recovery, and (4) the expected future cash flonth@finvestment in relation to its amortized cddhrealized losses on assets that are
considered OTTI due to credit are recognized imiegs and the cost basis of the assets are adjusted

At March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Compkassified its assets and liabilities as Levellhe Company'’s financial
assets and liabilities carried at fair value oe@urring basis are valued at March 31, 2011 aneéDéer 31, 2010 as presented below.

March 31, 201!
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:

Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - 9 329,78. $ -
Subordinatet - 2,266,561 -
Senior, no-retainec - 2,368,21. -
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 4,879,38 -
Interest rate sway - 5,87¢ -
Liabilities:
Interest rate sway - 6,03: -
December 31, 201
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ 987,68! $ =
Subordinatec - 2,210,85! -
Senior, no-retained - 2,330,56! -
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 2,133,58 -
Liabilities:
Interest rate sway - 9,98¢ -

In the aggregate, the Company'’s fair valuationRMIBS investments were 0.11% higher than the ag¢edgiealer marks for the
quarter ended March 31, 2011 and 0.76% higherttiaaggregated dealer marks for the quarter endedhvB1, 2010.
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Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company records securitized loans held forstnaent when it securitizes loans and records #reséction as a “financing.The
Company carries securitized loans held for inveatrag principal value, plus premiums or discourgtglpless an allowance for loan
losses. The Company estimates the fair valuesafaturitized loans held for investment at the &mfjgsted expected future cash flows of the
collateral. The Company models each underlyingtdsg considering, among other items, the natutbefinderlying collateral, coupon,
servicer, actual and expected defaults, actuakapdcted default severities, reset indices, anplgyraent speeds in conjunction with market
research for similar collateral performance and agament’s expectations of general economic comditilo the sector and greater economy.

Repurchase Agreements

The Company records repurchase agreements attimgmactual amounts including accrued interest bl@yaRepurchase agreeme
are collateralized financing transactions utilibycthe Company to acquire investment securitiege f@ the short term nature of these
financial instruments, the Company estimated tivevidue of these repurchase agreements to beottiteactual obligation plus accrued
interest payable at maturity.

Securitized Debt and Securitized Debt, Non-Retained

The Company records securitized debt for certifisatr notes financed without recourse to the Compagecuritization or re-
securitization transactions treated as “financiqgg’suant to ASC 860. The Company carries sezeadtdebt at the principal balance
outstanding on noretained notes associated with its securitizedddeatd for investment plus premiums or discountsmeed with the sale
the notes to third parties. The premiums or dist®associated with the sale of the notes or w=téds are amortized over the life of the
instrument. The Company estimates the fair vafiseouritized debt by estimating the future casWw§ associated with underlying assets
collateralizing the secured debt outstanding. Chmpany models each underlying asset by consideaingng other items, the structure of
the underlying security, coupon, servicer, actmal expected defaults, actual and expected defawdtrdies, reset indices, and prepayment
speeds in conjunction with market research forlaingiollateral performance and management’s exfientaof general economic conditions
in the sector and greater economy.

The following table presents the carrying value astimated fair value, as described above, of tmagany’s financial instruments
at March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

March 31, 201: December 31, 201
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency RMBS $ 4,964,55. $ 4,964,55. $ 5,529,11. $ 5,529,11.
Agency RMBS 4,879,38. 4,879,38. 2,133,58 2,133,58
Securitized loans held for investme 326,29! 319,85: 353,53: 345,41(
Interest rate sway 5,87¢ 5,87¢ - -
Repurchase agreemel (3,870,40) (3,873,35) (1,808,79) (1,811,57)
Securitized dek (266,36 (279,24)) (289,23¢) (303,10
Securitized debt, ne-retained (2,091,37) (2,053,00) (1,956,079 (1,887,12)
Interest rate sway (6,039 (6,039 (9,98¢) (9,98¢)

6. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $3.9 billion and $ill®ib of repurchase agreements with weighted ayefgorrowing rates of 0.31
and 0.45% and weighted average remaining matuofi83 and 49 days as of March 31, 2011 and DeceBhe010, respectively. At
March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, RMBS pledgezbllateral under these repurchase agreementnhestimated fair value of $4.1
billion and $2.0 billion, respectively. The aveeadpily balances of the Company’s repurchase agnetsnfior the quarters ended March 31,
2011 and December 31, 2010 were $3.4 billion anfl Billion, respectively. The interest rates ofsheepurchase agreements are generally
indexed to the one-month or the three-month LIB@# and re-price accordingly.

At March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the rdfase agreements collateralized by RMBS had theviallg remaining
maturities.
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December 3:

March 31, 201 201(C
(dollars in thousand:

Overnight $ 279,26. $ -
1-30 days 1,340,89 232,26!
30 to 59 day: 1,836,42 970,39:
60 to 89 day: 413,82. 545,44
90 to 119 day - 60,69¢
Greater than or equal to 120 d: - -
Total $ 3,870,40 $ 1,808,79

At March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Comgahnot have an amount at risk greater than 10%s equity with any
counterparty.

7. Securitized Debt

All of the Company’s securitized debt is collateratl by residential mortgage loans or RMBS. Foafficial reporting purposes, the
Company’s securitized debt is accounted for apanfling. Thus, the residential mortgage loansMBR held as collateral are recorded in
the assets of the Company as securitized loandtreladvestment or RMBS and the securitized debétorded as a liability in the statements
of financial condition.

At March 31, 2011, the Company’s securitized deliateralized by residential mortgage loans hadrecipal balance of $279.2
million. The debt matures between the years 20@232838. At March 31, 2011, the debt carried agiveid average cost of financing equal
to 5.48%, that is secured by residential mortgagas of which approximately 44% of the remaininiggpal balance pays a fixed rate of
6.25% and 56% of the remaining principal balangesavariable rate of 5.41%. At December 31, 28i® Company’s securitized debt
collateralized by residential mortgage loans hadrcipal balance of $303.1 million. The debt mmatubetween the years 2023 and 2038. At
December 31, 2010, the debt carried a weightedageerost of financing equal to 5.52%, that is sstiny residential mortgage loans of
which approximately 44% of the remaining principalance pays a fixed rate of 6.29% and 56% ofehgaining principal balance pays a
variable rate of 5.47%.

At March 31, 2011, the Company’s securitized debh-retained, collateralized by RMBS had a princigdance of $2.1
billion. The debt matures between the years 208652047. At March 31, 2011, the debt carried agiveid average cost of financing eque
5.21%. At December 31, 2010, the Company’s sezeadtdebt, non-retained, collateralized by RMBS &amtincipal balance of $2.0
billion. The debt matures between the years 20852847. At December 31, 2010, the debt carriegighted average cost of financing
equal to 5.17%.

The following table presents the estimated prindippayment schedule of the securitized debt andrigzed debt, nometained heli
by the Company at March 31, 2011 and December@llQ,2based on expected cash flows of the residentiegage loans or RMBS, as
adjusted for projected losses, collateralizingdbbt. All of the securitized debt recorded in @@mpany’s consolidated statements of
financial condition is non-recourse to the Company.

December 3:
March 31, 201 201C
(dollars in thousand:

Within One Yeal $ 614,59: $ 634,98t
One to Three Yeal 916,09( 831,30!
Three to Five Year 373,83 305,95¢
Greater Than or Equal to Five Yei 427,73: 417,97
Total $ 2,332,224 $ 2,190,22:

Maturities of the Company'’s securitized debt angaesielent upon cash flows received from the undegligans. The estimate of their
repayment is based on scheduled principal paynoentse underlying loans. This estimate will diffesm actual amounts to the extent
prepayments and/or loan losses are experiencezeiN&e 4 for a more detailed discussion of thedazollateralizing the securitized debt.
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8. Consolidation

In June 2009, the FASB issued two new accountiagdstrds that amended guidance applicable to ttmuating for transfers of
financial assets and the consolidation of Variabterest Entities (“ VIEs ") (ASC 860 and ASC 818spectively). The primary effect of
these standards was to eliminate the concept ¢f3EQvhen transferring assets and to remove themi@mnof a QSPE when applying the
consolidation standard. The Company adopted theseaccounting standards as of January 1, 2010.

The Company uses securitization trusts or variaidgest entities in its securitization and re-siization transactions. Prior to
January 1, 2010, these variable interest entitigistne definition of QSPE’s and, as such, weresnbject to consolidation. Effective January
1, 2010, all such variable interest entities wemesitdered for consolidation based on the criteria$C 810.

Per ASC 810, an entity shall consolidate a VIE wtiext entity has a variable interest that provithesreporting entity with a
controlling financial interest. The assessmernhefcharacteristics of the reporting enst¥/|E shall consider the VIEs purpose and desiy|
controlling financial interest is defined as (2 thower to direct the activities of a VIE that msigmificantly impact the VIEs economic
performance and (b) the obligation to absorb los$#ise VIE that could potentially be significaotthe VIE and/or the right to receive
benefits from the VIE that could potentially bersficant to the VIE.

Since the Company’s inception, the Company hadexdedlEs for the purpose of securitizing whole ngage loans or reecuritizing
RMBS and obtaining permanent, noeeourse term financing. The Company evaluateidtésest in each securitization trust VIE to detiee
the primary beneficiary status. The Company detezththat seven trusts, one of which had been didased since its inception, met the
requirements of consolidation. The Company deteeghihat in these seven securitizations, basealdlmly all of the subordinate interests
maintains the obligation to absorb losses and®ritfht to receive benefits from the VIE that cob&lsignificant to the VIE. In addition, the
Company had the power to direct activities of tlusttor was determined to have the ability to aaritve trust due to its contribution in the
purpose and design of the structure. The remaimmngrusts evaluated did not meet the requirement®nsolidate due to the inability to
control one of the trusts and the lack of obligagito absorb losses on the other trust.

VIEs for Which the Company is the Primary Beneficiary

Based on the Company’s consolidation evaluatice@bmpany consolidated three VIEs on January 10 #Ht were not previously
consolidated and consolidated three VIEs thatiatd during 2010. The Company’s retained beéfitierest is typically the subordinated
tranches of these re-securitizations and in sorsescdne Company may hold interests in additioaalctnes. The effect is the inclusion of an
additional $2.4 billion of non-Agency mortgage-badlsecurities at fair value no longer retainedhgy@ompany and the inclusion in its
liabilities of $2.1 billion of non-recourse seciréd debt associated with these re-securitizations.

On an ongoing basis, the Company expects that tae Will be fair valued as Level 2 assets. Lirearis pertaining to the third-party
owned interests are separately stated within tlragamy’s consolidated financial statements and &bas “non-retained”.

The trusts are structured as pass through ertitéseceive principal and interest on the undegd\dollateral and distribute those
payments to the certificate holders. The assat#rer instruments held by the securitizationtierstiare restricted in that they can only be
used to fulfill the obligations of the securitizatientity. Additionally, the obligations of thecsgitization entities do not have any recourse to
the general credit of any other consolidated sudnsés, nor to the Company as the primary beneaficidhe Company’s risks associated with
its involvement with these VIEs is limited to iisks and rights as a certificate holder of the Isahtias retained. See Note 5 for a discussion
of the fair value measurement of the assets ahdities.

The assets of the securitization entities constditiy the Company are similar in nature to the gamy’s portfolio as a whole. Tt

securitization entities are all composed of RMB$hef quality and characteristics of assets refteacteahe RMBS classifications found in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. Sate R for a discussion of the securities charasttesi of the portfolio.
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The table below presents the assets and liabibfiesnsolidated entities as of January 1, 2010e dumulative effect adjustment
reflects the reversal of realized gains of $98.llioni previously recorded on the sales of theselpeansolidated trusts net of the additional
accretion of discounts due to consolidating thettru

Carrying Value (1

(dollars in
thousands
Assets
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior, no-retained $ 1,114,03.
Liabilities
Securitized debt, ni-retained 1,202,22.
Net assets and liabilities of newly consolidatetities (88,187
Cumulative effect adjustment to retained earningsnuadoptior $ (88,189

(1) Carrying value represents the amount the assmifd have been recorded at in the consolidateahfiial statements at January 1, 201 )
had they been recorded in the consolidated finhatagements on the date the Company first metdnelitions for consolidatior

The cumulative effect of adopting ASC 810 on Japdar2010 based on the shares outstanding on dt@twhs to reduce the
beginning book value of the Company by $0.13 paresh

The table below reflects the assets and liabilitse®rded in the consolidated statements of firsmeindition related to consolidated
securitization entities as of March 31, 2011 andddeber 31, 2010.

March 31, 201: December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Assets
Nor-Agency RMBS $ 4,105,761 $ 4,357,63
Liabilities
Securitized debt, n-retained $ 2,091,37 $ 1,956,07!

The consolidation of these securitization entitieseases both the income and expense recordéd tonhsolidated statements of
operations for the Company as detailed in the thblew.

For the Quarter For the Quarter
Ended Ended
March 31, 201: March 31, 201(
(dollars in thousand:
Interest income, nc-retainec $ 21,15¢ $ 50,86:
Interest expense, n-retainec 27,57¢ 33,83(
Net interest income, n-retained $ (6,416 $ 17,03:

A discussion of the significant accounting polictedshe Company to record income and expense Isded in Note 2 to these
consolidated financial statements. The effectdoiing ASC 810 based on the weighted average slatstanding was to decrease the net
interest income of the Company by approximatelY$@or the quarter ended March 31, 2011.

The effect of the consolidation of these secutiiiraentities on the consolidated statements df 8asvs for the Company is
presented in the table below for the periods pitesien
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March 31, 201 March 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings,-retained $ 311,01: $ 498,72(
Payments on securitized debt borrowings,-retained (175,719 (84,639
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest recer 142 (7,847
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest pa (59€) 8,14
Net cash flows, nc-retainec $ 134,83¢ $ 414,38

VIEs for Which the Company is Not the Primary Beneficiary

The table below represents the carrying amountskasgification of assets recorded on the Compargrsolidated financial
statements related to its variable interests incarsolidated VIEs, as well as its maximum exposoress as a result of its involvement with
these VIEs.

March 31, 201: December 31, 201
Amortized Cos Fair Value Amortized Cos Fair Value
(dollars in thousand:
Assets
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 341 $ 524 $ 40C $ 55¢
Subordinatec 6,952 6,19¢ 7,66¢ 6,48¢
Agency RMBS 2,454 2,45¢ 2,68( 2,53(
Total $ 9,741 $ 9,17¢ $ 10,74 $ 9,57¢

The Company’s involvement with VIEs for which itrist the primary beneficiary generally are in tbenf of purchasing securities
issued by the trusts similar to its investmentstirer RMBS that are not part of a trust it has ea#d for consolidation. The Company’s
maximum exposure to loss in these entities is sgmed by the fair value of these assets. Thisiahmpes not include OTTI or other write-
downs that the Company previously recognized thncesynings.

9. Interest Rate Swaps

In connection with the Company’s interest rate nsknagement strategy, the Company economicallydsedgortion of its interest
rate risk by entering into derivative financialtinenent contracts. These derivative financialrinsient contracts do not qualify as hedges
under ASC 815. As of March 31, 2011 and DecembeRB10, such instruments are comprised of inteegstswaps, which in effect modify
the cash flows on repurchase agreements. Thefuse@st rate swaps creates exposure to crattirelating to potential losses that could be
recognized if the counterparties to these instrumfail to perform their obligations under the gawits. In the event of a default by the
counterparty, the Company could have difficultyadbing its RMBS pledged as collateral for swapse Tompany does not anticipate any
defaults by its counterparties.

The Company’s swaps are used to lock in a fixesl melated to a portion of its current and anti@datepurchase agreements.

The table below summarizes the location and fdirevaf interest rate swaps reported in the Conatdidl Statements of Financial
Condition as of March 31, 2011 and December 310201
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Net Estimated

Location on Consolidated Fair
Statement of Financial Notional Value/Carrying
Condition Amount Value

(dollars in thousand:

March 31, 201: Assets $ 500,00 $ 5,87¢
March 31, 201: Liabilities $ 450,00 $ (6,037)
December 31, 201 Assets $ - $ -
December 31, 201 Liabilities $ 450,00 $ (9,98¢)

The effect of the Company'’s interest rate swaptherConsolidated Statement of Operations and Cdmpsive Income (Loss) is
presented below.

Location on Consolidated Statements of
Operations
and Comprehensive Income (Lo
Unrealized Gain
(Loss) on Interest
Interest Expens Rate Swap
(dollars in thousand:

For the quarter ende
March 31, 201: $ 2,847 $ 9,831

The weighted average pay rate on the Company’sesiteate swaps at March 31, 2011 was 2.08% anddighted average receive
rate was 0.25%. The Company had no interest vedpsoutstanding as of March 31, 2010.

10. Common Stock

On January 28, 2011 the Company entered into aityejstribution agreement with FIDAC and UBS Setias LLC
(“UBS"). Through this agreement, the Company mely/through UBS, as its sales agent, up to 1250@@shares of its common stock in
ordinary brokers’ transactions at market pricestber transactions as agreed between the CompanyB8. The Company did not sell any
shares of its common stock under the equity digtidin agreement during the quarter ended Marcl2@11].

On September 24, 2009, the Company implementedidedid reinvestment and share purchase plan (“DRSHPPe DRSPP
provides holders of record of its common stock ppartunity to automatically reinvest all or a portiof their cash distributions received on
common stock in additional shares of our commooksas well as to make optional cash payments tohaise shares of our common stock.
Persons who are not already stockholders may ailsdh@se our common stock under the plan througbmadtcash payments. The DRSPI
administered by the Administrator, The Bank of Néark Mellon. During the quarter ended March 31, 20the Company raised $311,000
by issuing 73,567 shares through the DRSPP. Dthiagjuarter ended March 31, 2010 no shares waredasder the DRSPP.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Complaclared dividends to common shareholders tg&i%3.7 million or $0.14
per share. During the quarter ended March 31, 26E0Company declared dividends to common shadem®totaling $113.8 million or
$0.17 per share.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstarangf March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.
11. Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock inceptaueto provide incentives to its independentaes and employees of
FIDAC and its affiliates, to stimulate their effstibwards the Company’s continued success, lomg-geowth and profitability and to attract,
reward and retain personnel and other service geosi The incentive plan authorizes the Compeams@bmmittee of the board of directors
to grant awards, including incentive stock optiams-qualified stock options, restricted sharesa@heér types of incentive awards. The
specific award granted to an individual is basednyn part, the individual's position within FIDAGhe individual’s position within the
Company, his or her contribution to the Companggg@mance, market practices, as well as the recamdiations of FIDAC. The incentive
plan authorizes the granting of options or othearals for an aggregate of the greater of 8.0% obthstanding shares of the Company’s
common stock up to a ceiling of 40,000,000 shares.
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On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restrgttedk awards in the amount of 1,301,000 share$DAE's employees and the
Company’s independent directors. The awards tintthependent directors vested on the date of gnadithe awards to FIDAC’s employees
vest quarterly over a period of 10 years. Of thesmes, as of March 31, 2011, 447,800 sharesvested and 43,587 shares were forfeite
cancelled.

As of March 31, 2011, there was $15.1 million aitainrecognized compensation costs related tovested share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the lomgiteentive plan, based on the closing price efghares on the grant date. That cost is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagedoof 6.8 years. The total fair value of sharested, less those forfeited, during the
quarter ended March 31, 2011 was $128,000, bas#teaziosing price of the stock on the vesting date

12. Income Taxes

As a REIT, the Company is not subject to Fedei@nne tax to the extent that it makes qualifyindriisitions to its stockholders,
and provided it satisfies on a continuing basiguh actual investment and operating resultsRIEBE requirements including certain asset,
income, distribution and stock ownership tests.sMitates recognize REIT status as well. Duriegiharter ended March 31, 2011, the
Company recorded $698,000 in income tax expenaterkto earnings of its TRS and state income takesing the quarter ended March 31,
2010, the Company recorded no income tax expense.

In general, common stock cash dividends declarethidy¥ompany will be considered ordinary incomsttxkholders for income t:
purposes. From time to time, a portion of the Canys dividends may be characterized as capitalsgai return of capital. For the quarters
ended March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, thep@ayrestimates that all income distributed in thvenf of dividends will be
characterized as ordinary income.

The Company files tax returns in several U.S. flicgsons, including New York State and New York\CitThe 2010 tax year rema
open to U.S. Federal, State, and local examinations

13. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s primary components of market riskcaeelit risk and interest rate risk. The Compangubject to interest rate risk
in connection with its investments in Agency and#@ency residential mortgage loans and creditiseasnortgage-backed
securities. When the Company assumes interestis&tat attempts to minimize interest rate ribkaugh asset selection, hedging and
matching the income earned on mortgage assetdhvetbost of related liabilities. The Company ibjsat to interest rate risk, primarily in
connection with its investments in fixed-rate adiuatable-rate mortgage-backed securities, regamlenbrtgage loans, and borrowings under
repurchase agreements. The Company attempts tmizéncredit risk through due diligence and asettdion by purchasing loans
underwritten to agreed-upon specifications of getkoriginators. The Company has established deAban target market including prime
borrowers with FICO scores generally greater thah &lt-A documentation, geographic diversificatiamwner-occupied property, and
moderate loan to value ratio. These factors ansidered to be important indicators of credit risk.

14. Management Agreement and Related Party Trans#ons
The Company has entered into a management agreeritleriiiDAC, which provided for an initial term thugh December 31, 2010
with an automatic one-year extension option angestibo certain termination rights. On November 2810, the Compensation Committee
of the Board of Directors renewed the managemengieagent through December 31, 2011. The Company PE&AC a quarterly
management fee equal to 1.50% per annum of the @wekholders’ Equity (as defined in the managdaragreement) of the Company.
Management fees accrued and paid to FIDAC for tteatgrs ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 were $12li@mand $8.1 million,
respectively.
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The Company is obligated to reimburse FIDAC forcitsts incurred under the management agreemeiaiddition, the management
agreement permits FIDAC to require the Companyatpfpr its pro rata portion of rent, telephonelitigis, office furniture, equipment,
machinery and other office, internal and overhegikases that FIDAC incurred in the operation of@lmenpany. These expenses are
allocated between FIDAC and the Company based@rsatio of the Company’s proportion of gross assetspared to all remaining gross
assets managed by FIDAC as calculated at eachequend. FIDAC and the Company will modify thisogthtion methodology, subject to the
Company'’s board of directorapproval if the allocation becomes inequitable (ifehe Company becomes very highly leveraged maned tc
FIDAC's other funds and accounts). During the tpraended March 31, 2011, the Company reimbursBd\Elapproximately $146,000 for
such expenses. During the quarter ended March@®D, FIDAC waived its right to request reimburseirfeom the Company for these
expenses.

During the quarters ended March 31, 2011 and Maigt2010, 31,600 shares and 32,225 shares ofcteststock issued by the
Company to FIDACS employees vested, respectively as discussedtsnNo During the quarters ended March 31, 20tiNarch 31, 201(
585 shares and 562 shares of restricted stockddsuthe Company to FIDAC’s employees were forfiitespectively.

In April 2009, the Company entered into a Secwgitrdustry and Financial Markets Association statigimeprinted form Master
Repurchase Agreement with RCap Securities, Inghally owned subsidiary of Annaly. This standagiteement does not contain any so
liquidity, net worth or other similar types of ptigé or negative covenants. Rather, the agreeomnhins covenants that require the buyer
and seller of securities to deliver collateral ecuwities, and similar covenants which are custgrimramaster repurchase agreements. At
March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Compadynb financing under this agreement. The Compasybeen in compliance with all
covenants of this agreement since it entered hisoagreement.

In March 2008, the Company entered into a Secaritidustry and Financial Markets Association statigeprinted form Master
Repurchase Agreement with Annaly. This standardeagent does not contain any sort of liquidity,wetth or other similar types of
positive or negative covenants. Rather, the ageeégontains covenants that require the buyer alher ©f securities to deliver collateral or
securities, and similar covenants which are custgrimamaster repurchase agreements. At March @1] 2nd December 31, 2010, the
Company had no financing under this agreement.Gdrapany has been in compliance with all covenaftisi® agreement since it entered
into this agreement.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has reviewed subsequent events ocdtirimggh the date that these consolidated finast@éments were available
be issued, and determined that no subsequent evasred that would require accrual or additiaffiatloure. The Company may become
involved in various claims and legal actions agsimthe ordinary course of business. Managensembi aware of any reported or unreported
contingencies at March 31, 2011.
16. Subsequent Events

The Company has reviewed subsequent events ocdtirimggh the date that these consolidated finast@éments were available
be issued, and determined that no subsequent evasred that would require accrual or additiafiatlosure.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
We make forward-looking statements in this replaat are subject to risks and uncertainties. Theseaird-looking statements

include information about possible or assumed &utesults of our business, financial conditionyilility, results of operations, plans and

objectives. When we use the words “believe,” ‘fect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “c ontinue,” “intend,” “should,” “may,”
“WOuld,” 13

will” or similar expressions, we intad to identify forward-looking statements. Statatseegarding the following subjects,
among others, are forward-looking by their nature:

« our business and investment strategy;

« our projected financial and operating results;

« our ability to maintain existing financing arrangemts, obtain future financing arrangements andehmas of such arrangements;
« general volatility of the securities markets in afive invest;

« the impact of and changes to various governmergraros;

« our expected investments;

« changes in the value of our investments;

« interest rate mismatches between our investmewt®anborrowings used to fund such purchases;

« changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayrags; r

. effects of interest rate caps on our adjustableiratestments;

« rates of default or decreased recovery rates omwastments;

» prepayments of the mortgage and other loans uridgrbur mortgage-backed or other asset-backedisesur
« the degree to which our hedging strategies mayayr mot protect us from interest rate volatility;

« impact of and changes in governmental regulatislaw and rates, accounting guidance, and simikiters;
« availability of investment opportunities in reatae-related and other securities;

« availability of qualified personnel;

» estimates relating to our ability to make distribn$ to our stockholders in the future;

« our understanding of our competition; and

« market trends in our industry, interest rates,dilet securities markets or the general economy.
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The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsehssumptions and expectations of our futureopmance, taking into account
all information currently available to us. You skunot place undue reliance on these forward-loglsitatements. These beliefs, assumptions
and expectations can change as a result of mamsjbmevents or factors, not all of which are knawmis. Some of these factors are
described under the caption “Risk Factors” in owost recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and angegbent Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q. If a change occurs, our business, finargabition, liquidity and results of operations mayry materially from those expressed in our
forward-looking statements. Any forward-lookingtstaent speaks only as of the date on which it idenBlew risks and uncertainties arise
from time to time, and it is impossible for us tegict those events or how they may affect us.efkas required by law, we are not oblig:
to, and do not intend to, update or revise any &mdalooking statements, whether as a result ofinfavmation, future events or otherwise.
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Executive Summary

We are a specialty finance company that acquirdredirectly or indirectly through our subsidiesi residential mortgage-backed
securities, or RMBS, residential mortgage loanmmoercial mortgage loans, real estate related s&miand various other asset classes. We
are externally managed by Fixed Income Discountigaty Company, which we refer to as FIDAC or ourridger. FIDAC is a fixed-
income investment management company that is exgstas an investment adviser with the SecuritidsExchange Commission, or
SEC. FIDAC is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ann&gpital Management, Inc., or Annaly. FIDAC hag@éd range of experience in
managing investments in Agency RMBS, which are gageé pass-through certificates, collateralized gagr¢ obligations, or CMOs, and
other mortgage-backed securities representingesitein or obligations backed by pools of mortgages issued or guaranteed by Fannie
Mae, Freddie Mac, and Ginnie Mae, non-Agency RM&8#ateralized debt obligations, or CDOs, and otieat estate related investments.

We have elected and intend to qualify to be taxeed REIT for federal income tax purposes commenwiitly our taxable year ended
December 31, 2007. Our targeted asset classabapdincipal investments we expect to make in eaetas follows:

Asset Class Principal Investments

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities * Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade and
non-investment grade classes, including the BBdrate
B-rated and non-rated classes.

* Agency RMBS.

Residential Mortgage Loans «  Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans that
conform to the underwriting guidelines of FannieeMa
and Freddie Mac, which we refer to as Agency
Guidelines; and jumbo prime mortgage loans, which
are mortgage loans that conform to the Agency
Guidelines except as to loan size.

» Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans that
may have been originated using documentation
standards that are less stringent than the docuaiamr
standards applied by certain other first lien magig
loan purchase programs, such as the Agency
Guidelines, but have one or more compensating ff&
such as a borrower with a strong credit or mortgage
history or significant assets.
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Commercial Mortgage Loans «  First or second lien loans secured by multifamily
properties, which are residential rental properties
consisting of five or more dwelling units; and niixe
residential or other commercial properties; retail
properties; office properties; or industrial prapes,
which may or may not conform to the Agency
Guidelines.

Other Asset-Backed Securities . CMBS.

» Debt and equity tranches of CDOs.

. Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including
investment-grade and non-investment grade classes,
including the BE-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe!

We completed our initial public offering on Novemlt2d, 2007. In that offering and in a concurremgte offering we raised net
proceeds of approximately $533.6 million from tla¢es of shares of our common stock. Since thehave raised an aggregate of
approximately $3.1 billion in follow-on offeringsdm the sales of shares of our common stock.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubsteturns to our investors over the long-term, prity through dividends and
secondarily through capital appreciation. We idtemachieve this objective by investing in a brekass of financial assets to construct an
investment portfolio that is designed to achietmative risk-adjusted returns and that is strieriuto comply with the various federal income
tax requirements for REIT status and to maintainesemption from the Investment Company Act of 13#0the 1940 Act.

Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawve focused our investment activities on acquinog-Agency RMBS and
on purchasing residential mortgage loans that baes originated by select high-quality originatéms|uding the retail lending operations of
leading commercial banks. Our investment portf@iaeighted toward noAgency RMBS. At March 31, 2011, approximately Pa.a@f our
investment portfolio’s principal value was non-AggrRMBS, 25.1% of our investment portfolio’s pripal value was Agency RMBS, and
3.2% of our investment portfolio’s principal valuas secured residential mortgage loans. At Decethe2010, approximately 83.4% of
our investment portfolio’s principal value was ndgency RMBS, 12.6% of our investment portfolio’snmipal value was Agency RMBS,
and 4.0% of our investment portfolio’s principalu@awas secured residential mortgage loans. Weatxpat over the near term our
investment portfolio will continue to be weightenviard RMBS, subject to maintaining our REIT quakifion and our 1940 Act exemption.

Our investment strategy is intended to take adgntd opportunities in the current interest raté aredit environment. We will
adjust our strategy to changing market conditionstifting our asset allocations across these uarasset classes as interest rate and credit
cycles change over time. We believe that ouressgtcombined with FIDAG experience, will enable us to pay dividends artdexe capite
appreciation throughout changing market cycles. eifeect to take a long-term view of assets andliligis, and our reported earnings and
mark-to-market valuations at the end of a finanelorting period will not significantly impact oabjective of providing attractive risk-
adjusted returns to our stockholders over the kemngp.

We use leverage to seek to increase our poteptiains and to fund the acquisition of our assétsr income is generated primarily
by the difference, or net spread, between the ircam earn on our assets and the cost of our bargswiWe expect to finance our
investments using a variety of financing sourcetuising, when available, repurchase agreementghuaise facilities, securitizations,
commercial paper and term financing CDOs. We mawpage our debt by utilizing interest rate hedgesh |s interest rate swaps, to reduce
the effect of interest rate fluctuations relatedto debt.
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Recent Developments

During the period of market dislocation that comeethin August 2007, fiscal and monetary policymalastablished new liquidity
facilities for primary dealers and commercial banksluced short-term interest rates, and passedtign that is intended to address the
challenges of mortgage borrowers and lenders. eB#er 2008 Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac were piatedhe conservatorship of the
Federal Housing Finance Agency, or FHFA, their fatleegulator, pursuant to its powers under TheeFgdHousing Finance Regulatory
Reform Act of 2008, a part of the Housing and EenitoRecovery Act of 2008. In addition to FHFA betdag the conservator of Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac, the Treasury and FHFA entietedoreferred stock purchase agreements (PSPAsEba the Treasury and Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac pursuant to which the Treastlhensure that each of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mamtains a positive net worth. On
December 24, 2009, the Treasury amended the terthe @SPAs with Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to rembe $200 billion per institutic
limit established under the PSPAs until the end@ff2. The Treasury also amended the PSPAs witlece$o the requirements for Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac to reduce their portfolios.

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed into feenDiodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Btiote Act, or the Dodd-
Frank Act. The Dodd-Frank Act provides for new ragjons on financial institutions and creates neyesvisory and advisory bodies,
including the new Consumer Financial Protectionedur The Dodd-Frank Act tasks many agencies wstling a variety of new regulations,
including rules related to mortgage origination aedvicing, securitization and derivatives. As Bad-Frank Act has only recently been
enacted and because a significant number of régutahave yet to be proposed or adopted in finahfat is not possible for us to predict h
the Dodd-Frank Act will impact our business.

On February 11, 2011, the U.S Department of theaduey issued a White Paper titleReforming America's Housing Finar
Market” that lays out, among other things, proposals td limpotentially wind down the role that Fannie &and Freddie Mac play in 1
mortgage market. Any such proposals, if enactealy hrave broad adverse implications for the mortgaggked securities market and
business, operations and financial condition. Wgeet such proposals to be the subject of sigmificiscussion and it is not yet possibl
determine whether or when such proposals may beteghawhat form any final legislation or policiesgmt take and how propos:
legislation or policies emanating from the WhitepBamay impact the mortgadpacked securities market and our business, opesatiot
financial condition. We are evaluating the potantnpact of the proposals set forth in the Whisgér.

Market conditions are evolving on a number of feofRegulatory and technical dynamics continue t@lig, and monetary policy
initiatives, including additional large scale agsetchases by the Federal Reserve, continue tosuagset prices and lower yields across a
wide range of market sectors, including ours.

Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be tteby various factors, many of which are beyondommtrol. Our results of
operations will primarily depend on, among othéndis, the level of our net interest income, theketavalue of our assets, and the supply of
and demand for such assets. Our net interest iecatnich reflects the amortization of purchase puems and accretion of discounts, varies
primarily as a result of changes in interest ratesrowing costs, and prepayment speeds, whichrisasurement of how quickly borrowers
pay down the unpaid principal balance on their gage loans.

Prepayment Speeds . Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constepayment Rate, or CPR, vary according to interdss, the
type of investment, conditions in financial marketsd other factors, none of which can be prediaii¢hl any certainty. In general, when
interest rates rise, it is relatively less attnaefior borrowers to refinance their mortgage loams as a result, prepayment speeds tend to
decrease. When interest rates fall, prepaymetdspend to increase. For mortgage loan and RMB&stments purchased at a premium, as
prepayment speeds increase, the amount of inconsammedecreases because the purchase premiumadv@iptiie bonds amortizes faster
than expected. Conversely, decreases in prepayspeatls result in increased income and can extengetriod over which we amortize the
purchase premium. For mortgage loan and RMBS invexsts purchased at a discount, as prepayment sipeeelase, the amount of income
we earn increases because of the acceleratiom afcitretion of the discount into interest incomeny&rsely, decreases in prepayment speed:
result in decreased income and can extend thedoevier which we accrete the purchase discountiiéoest income.
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Rising Interest Rate Environment . As indicated above, as interest rates rise, gym@ent speeds generally decrease. Rising interest
rates, however, increase our financing costs wimali result in a net negative impact on our ner@seincome. In addition, if we acquire
Agency and non-Agency RMBS collateralized by montielset adjustable-rate mortgages, or ARMs, arekthand five-year hybrid ARMs,
such interest rate increases could result in deessim our net investment income, as there coulltbming mismatch between the interest
reset dates on our RMBS portfolio and the finandiosts of these investments. We expect, thativedfrate assets would decline in value in
a rising interest rate environment and that ouiimetest spreads on fixed rate assets could detlia rising interest rate environment to the
extent such assets are financed with floatingdets.

Falling Interest Rate Environment . As interest rates fall, prepayment speeds gépémarease. Falling interest rates, however,
decrease our financing costs which may resultrietgpositive impact on our net interest incomeaddition, if we acquire Agency and non-
Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly reset adjbktarate mortgages, or ARMs, and three- and fivarygbrid ARMs, such interest rate
decreases could result in increases in our nesimant income, as there could be a timing mismiagtiveen the interest rate reset dates on
our RMBS portfolio and the financing costs of theéseestments. We expect, however, that our fixad-assets would increase in value in a
falling interest rate environment and that ourintdrest spreads on fixed rate assets could ineti@as falling interest rate environment to the
extent such assets are financed with floatingdets.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is acquiring assetshwhie believe to be of high credit quality. Weibeé this strategy
will generally keep our credit losses and finanaingts low. We also focus on acquiring distressesits non-Agency RMBS have been
downgraded because of defaults in the mortgagésteallizing such RMBS. When we acquire such RM&Sattempt to purchase it at a
price such that its loss-adjusted return profilmibne with our targeted yields. We retain tiekrof potential credit losses on all of the
residential mortgage loans we hold in our portfeigowell as all of the non-Agency RMBS. We attetognitigate credit risk in the asset
selection process. Prior to the purchase of imvests, we conduct a credit-risk based analysieetollateral securing our investment that
includes examining borrower characteristics, gegigiaconcentrations, current and projected delingigess, current and projected severities,
and actual and expected prepayment speeds amagrgcbtiracteristics to formulate expected losses.

Sze of Investment Portfolio . The size of our investment portfolio, as meadimgthe aggregate unpaid principal balance of our
mortgage loans and aggregate principal balanceroiortgage related securities and the other aggetsvn is also a key revenue
driver. Generally, as the size of our investmentfplio grows, the amount of interest income wesetige increases. The larger investment
portfolio, however, drives increased expenses amete additional interest expense to finance thelpase of our assets.

Current Environment . We expect to use a number of sources to financénvestments, including repurchase agreements,
warehouse facilities, securitizations, asset-baddedmercial paper and term CDOs. Current markeditions have affected the cost and
availability of financing from each of these sowemd their individual providers to different deggesome sources generally are unavailable,
some are available but at a high cost, and somiaaely unaffected.

In the current market, it may be difficult or impisle to obtain third party pricing on the investiteewe purchase. In addition,
validating third party pricing for our investmemigy be more subjective as fewer participants mayilb@g to provide this service to
us. Moreover, the current market is more illigthieln in recent history for some of the investmevdspurchase. llliquid investments typic:
experience greater price volatility as a ready readoes not exist. As volatility increases or idlity decreases we may have greater diffic
financing our investments which may negatively ictgzur earnings and the execution of our investrarategy.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles generatigepted in the United States
America, or GAAP. These accounting principles mequire us to make some complex and subjectivesibas and assessments. Our most
critical accounting policies will involve decisioasd assessments that could affect our reportedsaasd liabilities, as well as our reported
revenues and expenses. We believe that all afebisions and assessments upon which our consalifiatincial statements are based will
be reasonable at the time made and based upomigtion available to us at that time. The followamg our most critical accounting polici
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Valuation of Investments

Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC 8E@jr Value Measurements and Disclosures, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and establishes a three-level valudtierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurenatt enhances disclosure requirements for
fair value measurements. The valuation hierarstased upon the transparency of inputs to thetialuof an asset or liability as of the
measurement date. The three levels are defintadlaws:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imigliquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fukttm of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to overall fair value.

Non-Agency and Agency RMBS are valued using a pgichodel. The RMBS pricing model incorporates sfaciors as coupons,
prepayment speeds, spread to the Treasury andewags, convexity, duration, periodic and life gegosd credit enhancement. Management
reviews the fair values determined by the pricingdel and compares its results to dealer quotesvegten each investment to validate the
reasonableness of the valuations indicated byricang models. The dealer quotes incorporate commarket pricing methods, including a
spread measurement to the Treasury curve or intetesswap curve as well as underlying charadiesisf the particular security including
coupon, periodic and life caps, rate reset peigsier, additional credit support and expecteddiféhe security.

Although we utilize a pricing model to compute thé value of the securities in our portfolio, walidate our fair values by seeking
indications of fair value from thirgarty dealers and/or pricing services. The variighilf fair value among dealers and pricing sersican be
wide at this time as full liquidity for the non-Agey market has yet to return. In addition, theeefawer participants in the RMBS sector
available to fair value investments. Our intewallations of the securities on which we receivedler marks were 0.11% higher at March
31, 2011 and 0.76% higher at March 31, 2010 tharatjyregated dealer marks.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtbisy management to ensure the changes are aeopts markets and
products develop and the pricing for certain praslbecomes more transparent, we continue to refin@aluation methodologies. The
methods used by us may produce a fair value cdionlthat may not be indicative of net realizabddue or reflective of future fair values.
Furthermore, while we believe our valuation methadsappropriate and consistent with other mar&gigipants, the use of different
methodologies, or assumptions, to determine thiesédile of certain financial instruments could tegua different estimate of fair value at
the reporting date. We use inputs that are cuasmif the measurement date, which may includegewf market dislocation, during which
price transparency may be reduced. This conddgrid cause our financial instruments to be retflagsfrom Level 2 to Level 3.

Other-than-Temporary Impairments

We evaluate each investment in our RMBS portfadiodther-than-temporary impairments, or OTTI, gedytor more often if
market conditions warrant. Each investment is areyand we determine if we (1) have the intenetbtise security, (2) are more likely than
not to be required to sell the security before vecy, or (3) we do not expect to recover the ergirertized cost basis of the security. Further,
each security is analyzed for credit loss by coingathe difference between the present value df dlag/s expected to be collected and the
amortized cost basis. The credit loss, if anyhéntrecognized in the consolidated statements erfadipns, while the balance of impairment
related to other factors is recognized in other m@hensive income (loss).

Interest Income

Interest income on RMBS and loans held for investngrecognized over the life of the investmenhgshe effective interest
method. The effective interest method requiresignt management judgment in calculating thédgeutilized to accrete discounts and
amortize premiums. The assumptions used by ualtolate the expected yield include current andriiprepayment assumptions, expected
principal write-downs, loss severities, changeisiarest rates, and other factors that affect ¥peeted yield. Income recognition is
suspended for loans when, in the opinion of managéna full recovery of income and principal becsrdeubtful. Income recognition is
resumed when the loan becomes contractually cuarhperformance is demonstrated to be resumed.
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Accounting For Derivative Financial Instruments anéledging Activities

Our policies permit us to enter into derivative ttants, including interest rate swaps and intenagstcaps, as a means of mitigating
our interest rate risk. We use interest rate daviganstruments to mitigate interest rate riskeatthan to enhance returns. We account for
these instruments as free-standing derivativesodingly, they are carried at fair value with ieedl and unrealized gains and losses
recognized in earnings.

We recognize all derivatives as either assetsabiliies in the statement of financial conditiamdameasure those instruments at fair
value. Additionally, the fair value adjustmentshaiffect net income as we did not elect to use keaiggounting.

Derivatives will be used for economic hedging pwgmrather than speculation. We will rely on quotest from third parties to
determine fair values. We compare the dealer guateeived by us to the fair values generated bywun internal pricing model which
incorporates such factors as term to maturity,Tileasury curve, LIBOR rates, and payment ratedieriixed portion of the interest rate
swaps. If our hedging activities do not achievedesired results, our reported earnings may beradly affected.

Allowance for Probable Credit Losst

We have established an allowance for loan lossadeatel that management believes is adequate lasad evaluation of known
and inherent probable losses related to our loatfiglio. The estimate is based on a variety ofdexincluding current economic conditions,
industry loss experience, the loan originator'slesperience, credit quality trends, loan portfalionposition, delinquency trends, national
and local economic trends, national unemploymet#,ddanges in housing appreciation or depreciaial whether specific geographic
areas where we have significant loan concentrago@a&xperiencing adverse economic conditions &edte such as natural disasters that
may affect the local economy or property valuesotpurchase of the pools of loans, we obtainederritepresentations and warranties from
the sellers that we could be reimbursed for thaevalf the loan if the loan fails to meet the agrepdn origination standards. While we have
little history of our own to establish loan trendsjinquency trends of the originators and theentrmarket conditions aid in determining the
allowance for loan losses. We also performed dligedce procedures on a sample of loans that metmteria during the purchase
process. We have created an unallocated provisiqerobable loan losses estimated as a percenfape remaining principal on the
loans. Management'’s estimate is based on hist@igeerience of similarly underwritten pools.

When we determine it is probable that specific @msttially due amounts are uncollectible, the am@ioconsidered
impaired. Where impairment is indicated, a vahmativrite-off is measured based upon the excedseofdcorded investment over the net fair
value of the collateral, reduced by selling cogtay deficiency between the carrying amount of agesand the net sales price of repossesset
collateral is charged to the allowance for loarséss

Income Taxes

We have elected and intend to qualify to be taxed REIT. Therefore we will generally not be sabje corporate federal or state
income tax to the extent that we make qualifyingributions to our stockholders, and provided wesBaon a continuing basis, through
actual investment and operating results, the RE¢jfLirements including certain asset, income, tistion and stock ownership tests.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT, and do not qualffyr certain statutory relief provisions, we wik lsubject to federal, state and local
income taxes and may be precluded from qualifysig ®EIT for the subsequent four taxable yearsviolig the year in which we lost our
REIT qualification. Accordingly, our failure to glify as a REIT could have a material adverse ihpaur results of operations and
amounts available for distribution to our stockteskd

The dividends paid deduction of a REIT for qualifyidividends to its stockholders is computed usimgtaxable income as opposed
to net income reported on the consolidated findrstéiements. Taxable income, generally, willglifirom net income reported on the
consolidated financial statements because therdetation of taxable income is based on tax prowisiand not financial accounting
principles.

Financial Condition
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Estimated Economic Book Valu

This Management Discussion and Analysis sectiotiatas analysis and discussion of financial infoliorathat utilizes or presents
ratios based on GAAP book value. The table anclidson below present our estimated economic ballev We calculate and disclose this
non-GAAP measurement because we believe it repieeen estimated economic book value at the measnedate.

On January 1, 2010 GAAP required us to consolidat&in resecuritization transactions we consummated dur@@®zand 2010. |
these re-securitizations, we transferred assdtetee-securitization trusts, which issued tranafesenior and subordinate notes or
certificates. We sold the senior tranches ancefbez have no continuing involvement in these srasher than being a holder of notes or
certificates issued by the trusts, with the samltsi of other holders of the notes or certificat€se notes and certificates we own that were
issued by the trusts are largely subordinatedesterin those trusts. The trusts have no recaarser assets other than pursuant to a breach
by us of the transaction documents related tortrester of the assets by us to the trusts.

GAAP requires us to fair value and present thetagddhese trusts on our consolidated statemdriisamcial condition as if we still
owned the underlying securities we transferredhéottusts. We present the assets related to tiewlidated trusts in our consolidated
statements of financial position as a componemioofAgency mortgage-backed securities identifiedeaor, non-retained, and the liabilities
as securitized debt, non-retained. We have fairecathe underlying securities we transferred &otthsts for the calculation of GAAP book
value in accordance with our pricing policy, asalded more fully in our critical accounting estites, and recorded the corresponding
liability for the notes or certificates sold torthiparties. All fair value adjustments are recdraeOther Comprehensive Income.

However, because of the governing documents dirtisés we are unable to sell the underlying seiegrive transferred into the tru
as we no longer own those securities, we also ptesg estimated economic book value. We beligigrheasure represents the estimated
value of the securities issued by these trustswkadwn. In contrast to GAAP book value, our eatieal economic book value considers only
the assets we own or are able to dispose of, pledgeherwise monetize. To determine our estichat®nomic book value, we fair value the
notes or certificates issued by the re-securitratiusts that we actually own in accordance withpricing policy. Accordingly, our
estimated economic book value does not includesassdiabilities for which we have no continuingdlvement, specifically the notes or
certificates of the resecuritization trusts that were sold to third perti We believe this estimate represents the \ddltlee assets that we hc
in our portfolio should we decide to sell, pledgeptherwise dispose of assets as of the measutetaen

At March 31, 2011 the difference between GAAP bwakie and estimated economic book value was detedrtd be $276.8
million. At December 31, 2010 the difference beaw&AAP book value and estimated economic bookevaias determined to be $374.5
million. This difference is primarily driven byémature of the assets we have retained in thesecrgitization transactions as compared to
the nature of underlying securities in these trafisas. In these re-securitization transactiorsyetained the subordinated, typically non-
rated, first loss notes or certificates issuedHgyre-securitization trusts. These securitiesanmplex, typically locked out as to principal
repayment, relatively illiquid, and do not necesgappreciate or depreciate in tandem with theadey non-Agency RMBS market or with
the underlying securities owned by the trusts. fBiides below present the adjustments to GAAP lvadke that we believe necessary to
adequately reflect our calculation of estimatedhecoic book value as of March 31, 2011 and Decer@be2010.
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March 31, 2011

Estimated
GAAP Book Economic Book
Value Adjustments Value
(dollars in thousand:

Assets:
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair vali

Senior $ 329,78: $ - 8 329,78

Subordinatet 2,266,56! - 2,266,56!

Senior, no-retained 2,368,21. (2,368,21) -
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair val 4,879,38. - 4,879,38.
Securitized loans held for investment, net of alose for loan losse 326,29! - 326,29!
Other current asse 88,20: - 88,20:
Total asset $ 10,258,43 $ (2,368,21) $ 7,890,22;
Repurchase agreemel 3,870,40 - 3,870,40
Securitized dek 266,36: - 266,36:
Securitized debt, n«-retained 2,091,37 (2,091,37) -
Other liabilities 487,90: - 487,90:
Total liabilities 6,716,04. (2,091,37) 4,624,67.
Total stockholders' equil 3,542,39I (276,847 3,265,54!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 10,258,43 $ (2,368,21) $ 7,890,22:
Book Value Per Shal $ 3.4 $ (0.27) $ 3.1¢

December 31, 2010
Estimated
GAAP Book Economic Book
Value Adjustments Value

Assets: (dollars in thousand:
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair vali

Senior $ 987,68! $ - 8 987,68!

Subordinatet 2,210,85! - 2,210,85!

Senior, no-retained 2,330,56! (2,330,561 -
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair val 2,133,58 - 2,133,58
Securitized loans held for investment, net of alose for loan losse 353,53: - 353,53:
Other current asse 57,47 - 57,47
Total asset $ 8,073,701 $ (2,330,56) $ 5,743,13.
Repurchase agreemel 1,808,79 - 1,808,79
Securitized dek 289,23t - 289,23t
Securitized debt, n«-retained 1,956,07 (1,956,079 -
Other liabilities 336,58: - 336,58:
Total liabilities 4,390,69: (1,956,079 2,434,61!
Total stockholders' equil 3,683,001 (374,489 3,308,51
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 8,073,701 $ (2,330,56) $ 5,743,13.
Book Value Per Shai $ 35¢ §$ (0.3 $ 3.2¢
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Our estimate of economic book value has imporiaritdtions. Our estimate of fair value is as gfant in time and subject to
significant judgment. Other market participantsyrdarive a different fair value for each asset thancalculate. Should we sell the assets in
our portfolio, we may realize materially differgaroceeds from the sale than we have estimatedthg ofporting date.

Although we believe that the calculation of estietbéconomic value described above helps our marexgeand investors
understand the fair value of the assets we owrtlantabilities for which we are legally obligatdtlis of limited usefulness as an analytical
tool. It does not take account of the fair valfi@ssets that we do not own, but regarding whichwillebe the principal beneficiary of
increases in value above, and will bear the praddjprden of reductions in value to below, whatrently is anticipated. Therefore, the
estimated economic book value should not be viewésblation and is not a substitute for book vateenputed in accordance with GAAP.

Portfolio Review

At March 31, 2011, our portfolio consisted of $6illion of non-Agency RMBS, $4.9 billion of Agend¥MBS, at fair value, and
$326.3 million of securitized mortgage loans, abdimed cost. At December 31, 2010, our portfobmsisted of $5.5 billion of non-Agency
RMBS, $2.1 billion of Agency RMBS and $353.5 miliiof securitized mortgage loans.

The following table summarizes certain charactiesstf our portfolio at March 31, 2011 and 20103 &ecember 31, 2010:

March 31, 201: March 31, 201( December 31, 20:
Interest earning assets at pe-end * $ 10,170,23 $ 6,023,72. $ 8,016,22
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $ 6,228,114 $ 3,687,33' $ 4,054,11
Leverage at peric-end 1.8:1 1.6:1 1.1:1
Leverage at peric-end (recourse 1.1:1 0.7:1 0.5:1
Portfolio Composition, at principal valt
Non-Agency RMBS 71.% 76.5% 83.4%
Senior 0.1% 15.7% 4.C%
Senior, interest onl 33.2% 15.6% 35.7%
Subordinatet 25.€% 25.8% 29.8%
Subordinated, interest on 1.€% 2.8% 1.8%
Senior, no-retainec 11.2% 16.6% 12.1%
Agency RMBS 25.1% 15.4% 12.6%
Securitized loan 3.2% 8.1% 4.C%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 79.8% 66.2% 51.7%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 20.2% 33.8% 48.2%
Annualized yield on average interest earning ageethe quarter
ended** 7.41% 9.9%% 8.17%
Annualized cost of funds on average borrowed fifadthe quarter
endec 2.7(% 4.5(% 4.1(%

*  Excludes cash and cash equivale
** |ncludes the effect of realized loss on principate-downs.

The following table presents details of each aslssts in our portfolio at March 31, 2011. The pifrl or notional value represents
the interest income earning balance of each clabs.weighted average amortized cost, fair valaapon, yield, and CPR at period-end are
weighted by each investmestespective principal/notional value in the asteds. The figure presenting the annualized yogket the currel
quarter is the annualized interest income earngti@asset class during the quarter, includingeffext of principal write-downs, divided by
the average of the beginning and ending amortipst af the asset class.
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March 31, 201:

Weighted
Principal Weighted Average Weighted
or Average Weighted Yield Average
Notional ~ Amortized Weighted Average (Loss Annualizec Month
Value at Cost Basi: Average Fair Coupona  Adjusted) Yield Over CPR at
Period-  at Period- Value at Period- at Period- Current Period-
End End Perioc-End End End Quarter* End
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 9612 $ 988t $ 94.2 1.272% 2.6€% 2.21% 6%
Senior, interest onl $6,352,251 $ 6.44 $ 5.0t 2.02% 12.91% 4.7¢% 17%
Subordinatet $4,917,241 $ 46.8¢ $ 45.4¢ 4.12% 14.4%% 24.27% 16%
Subordinated, interest on $ 30342° $ 9.9t $ 10.5¢ 2.9%% 26.0€6% 35.8% 14%
Senior, no-retainecd $2,136,660 $ 98.0¢ $ 110.8¢ (1) 5.21% 4.88% 3.5(% 16%
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie  $4,800,91: $ 102.7¢ $ 102.7¢ 4.71% 4.2¢% 4.48% 20%
Securitized loan
Senior $ 273,17¢ $ 101.1¢ $ 101.1¢ 5.4€% 5.5(% 4.92% 25%
Senior, interest onl $ 288,66. $ 0.01 $ 0.01 0.41% 100.0%  4586.6% 24%
Subordinatet $ 57,477 $ 100.6¢ $ 100.6¢ 5.25% -1.95% 4.05% 25%

* Includes the effect of realized loss on principaite-downs.

(1) See discussion of Financial Condition on pagéoB a review of GAAP book valu

Our portfolio is primarily comprised of non-AgenBMBS which is subject to risk of loss with regaodprincipal repayment. The
following table summarizes certain characteristiteur non-Agency portfolio at March 31, 2011 anecBmber 31, 2010.

December 31,

March 31, 201! 2010
Number of securities in portfoli 527 581
Weighted average maturity (yea 27.2 27.4
Weighted average amortized loan to ve 72.£% 72.5%
Weighted average FIC 716.2 717.2
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 470.( $ 447.¢
Weighted average percentage owner occu 90.4% 83.2%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 63.5% 63.1%
Weighted average current credit enhancer 13.€% 16.(%
Weighted average geographic concentra CA 38.% CA 38.5%
FL 8.8% FL 8.9%
NY 5.3% NY 4.%%
NJ 24% VA 2.€%
VA 2.2% NJ 2.2%

The table below summarizes the credit ratings ofRIMMBS investments at March 31, 2011 and Decembgf@10. Our investment
guidelines place no restrictions on the credingdiof the assets we may acquire or retain. litiaddthe table below includes AAA rated
non-Agency senior securities consolidated pursteatite adoption of ASC 810, but for which we haweecontinuing involvement.

March 31, 201 December 31, 20:

AAA 13.25¥% 41.25%
AA 4.98% 7.91%
A 1.26% 1.92%
BBB 0.64% 0.80%
BB 0.01% 0.01%
B 0.00% 0.01%
Below B or not ratel 79.86Y 48.10%
Total 100.00¥ 100.00¥

Our management team evaluates each investmerd bagbe characteristics of the underlying colkaitesther than relying on the

ratings assigned to the asset by rating agencies.
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Results of Operations for the Quarters Ended Marci31, 2011 and 2010.

Net Income (Loss) Summary

Our net income for the quarter endeddd&1, 21011 was $163.4 million, or $0.16 per sh@re net income was generated primarily
by interest income on our portfolio. Our net in@fuar the quarter ended March 31, 2010 was $121li&m or $0.19 per share. We attrib
the decrease in our net income per share for tagepuended March 31, 2011 as compared to MarcB@IQ to the decrease in our interest
rate spread and an increase in realized lossesmmigal write-downs of non-Agency RMBS.

The table below presents the net income (loss) saamnfor the quarters ended March 31, 2011 and 2010.

Net Income (Loss) Summary
(dollars in thousands, except for share and peestata)

(unaudited)
March 31, 201: March 31, 201(

Net Interest Income:
Interest incom $ 206,57: $ 128,98:
Interest expens 10,84¢ 7,37
Interest income, ne-retainec 21,15¢ 50,86:
Interest expense, n-retainec 27,57¢ 33,83(
Net interest income (expens 189,30¢ 138,64:
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (4,205 (22,687
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in other comprediee income (loss 1,58( 20,14
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (2,625 (2,544
Other gains (losses)
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ 9,831 -
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investment: 2,744 342
Realized losses on principal w-downs of no-Agency RMBS (19,520 (949
Total other gains (losse (6,945 (607)
Net investment income (los 179,73¢ 135,49(
Other expenses
Management fe 12,75( 8,11«
Provision for loan losse 1,445 60€
General and administrative expen 1,487 1,16(C
Total other expense 15,67¢ 9,88(
Income (loss) before income taxes 164,06( 125,61(
Income taxe: 69¢ -
Net income (loss) $ 163,36. $ 125,61
Net income (loss) per shi-basic and dilute 0.1¢ $ 0.1¢
Weighted average number of shares outstarbasic and dilute 1,027,063,05 670,371,02
Comprehensive income (loss
Net income (loss 163,36: $ 125,61(
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, n (180,159 241,58:
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetkt income (loss) for other-than-tempor:
credit impairment losse 2,62¢ 2,54¢
Reclassification adjustment for realized lossein&@ancluded in net income (los 16,77¢ 607
Other comprehensive income (lo (160,757 244.73.
Comprehensive income (los 261C $ 370,34:
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Net Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yield

We had average earning assets of $11.2 billiordrl billion for the quarters ended March 31, 2@hd 2010, respectively. Our
interest income was $227.7 million and $179.8 wnillfor the quarters ended March 31, 2011 and 2@bpectively, reflecting an increase of
$47.9 million. Our interest income increase re=lifrom the increase in our interest earning assleish followed our 2010 secondary
offerings. The annualized yield on our portfoliasn8.11% and 10.04% for the quarters ended MarcB@1L and 2010, respectively. The
decrease in the annualized yield is attributeddedine in weighted average coupon on our podfoli

Our net interest income, which equals interestimedess interest expense, totaled $189.3 milliah%lr88.6 million for the quarters
ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, rifigan increase of $50.7 million. Our net intergatead, which equals the yield on our
average assets for the period less the averagefcstds for the period, was 5.41% and 5.54% lierquarters ended March 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively. We attribute the increaseeinimerest income to the increase in our portfofibigher yielding interest earning assets
following our secondary offerings. We attribute thecrease in net interest spread to increasediaatimn of premiums paid to purchase 10
securities, increased debt issue cost amortizatiohincreased interest expense associated witlegtteate swaps.

The table below shows our average assets heldljitdeest earned on assets, yield on averageesitearning assets, average debt
balance, interest expense, average cost of fued#terest income, and net interest rate spreathéoquarters ended March 31, 2011,
December 31, 2010, September 30, 2010, June 30, 28d March 31, 2010 and the year ended Decenih@030.

Net Interest Incom

Yield on
Average Average Net
Earning Interest Interest Average Average Net Interest
Assets Helc  Earned or  Earning Debt Interest Cost of Interest Rate
* Assets * Assets Balance Expense Funds Income Spreac

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse

For the quarter ended

March 31, 201! $11,235,63 $ 227,72. 8.11% $5,688,31. $ 38,42 2.7(% $ 189,29¢ 5.41%
For the year ended

December 31, 201 $ 8,479,100 $ 755,39 8.91% $3,793,04° $ 152,23t 4.01% $ 603,16: 4.9(%
For the quarter ended

December 31, 201 $ 9,311,58 $ 193,74« 8.32% $3,871,90: $ 39,64¢ 4.1(% $ 154,09! 4.22%
For the quarter ended

September 30, 201 $ 8,801,53. $ 198,46: 9.02% $3,733,89. $ 42,76¢ 4.58% $ 155,69 4.4%
For the quarter ended

June 30, 201 $ 8,640,37. $ 183,34¢ 8.4% $3,906,06. $ 28,61¢ 2.95% $ 154,73( 5.56%
For the quarter ended

March 31, 201( $ 7,16294. $ 179,84! 10.04% $3,660,33- $ 41,20¢ 45(% $ 138,64: 5.5/%

* Excludes cash and cash equivale
Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

We had average borrowed funds of $5.7 billion aBd $illion and total interest expense of $38.4ioriland $41.2 million for the
quarters ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, respegctiv@lir annualized cost of funds was 2.70% and%.&@ the quarters ended March 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively. The decrease inastexpense is related primarily to a decline @vleighted average borrowing rate on our
liabilities.

The table below shows our average borrowed fumtisiést expense, average cost of funds, averagmonth LIBOR, average Six-
month LIBOR, average one-month LIBOR relative termge six-month LIBOR, and average cost of funigive to average one- and six-
month LIBOR for the quarters ended March 31, 2@dcember 31, 2010, September 30, 2010, June 30, aa6d March 31, 2010 and the
year ended December 31, 20
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Average Cost of Func

Average
One- Average Average
Month Cost of Cost of
LIBOR Funds Funds
Relative Relative  Relative
to to to
Average Average Average Average Average
Average Average One- Six- Six- One- Six-
Borrowed Interest Cost of Month Month Month Month Month

Funds Expense Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse

For the quarter ended March 31,

2011 $5,688,31: $ 38,42¢ 2.7% 0.26% 0.4€% (0.2C%) 2.44% 2.2(%
For the year ended December 31,

2010 $3,793,04' $ 152,23t 4.01% 0.27% 0.52% (0.25%) 3.7/% 3.4%
For the quarter ended December

2010 $3,871,90 $ 39,64¢ 4.1(% 0.26% 0.45% (0.1%) 3.84% 3.65%
For the quarter ended September

2010 $3,733,89. $ 42,76¢ 4.58% 0.2% 0.5% (0.3(%) 4.2%% 3.9%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 $3,906,06. $ 28,61¢ 2.99% 0.32% 0.65% (0.31%) 2.61% 2.3(%
For the quarter ended March 31,

2010 $3,660,33. $ 41,20¢ 4.5(% 0.23% 0.4(% (0.17%) 4.27% 4.1(%

Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, we soldBBMith a carrying value of $649.8 million for rezald gains of $2.7
million. During the quarter ended March 31, 201®swold assets with a carrying value of $89.6 nmillichich resulted in net gains of
approximately $342 thousand.

Secured Debt Financing Transactions
We did not re-securitize RMBS during the quarteteshMarch 31, 2011.

On January 29, 2010, we transferred $1.7 billioprincipal value of our RMBS to the CSMC 2010-1Ridtrin a re-securitization
transaction. This transaction was recorded ageuted borrowing” pursuant to ASC Topics 860 and. 8th this transaction, we financed
$271.6 million of AAA-rated fixed rate bonds tortthiparty investors for net proceeds of $268.1 milli We retained $391.9 million of AAA-
rated bonds, $1.0 billion in subordinated bondstaedwner trust certificate, and interest only dewith a notional value of $1.6 billion on
the date of transfer. The subordinated bonds l@dwner trust certificate provide credit supportite AAA-rated bonds. The bonds issued
by the trust are collateralized by RMBS that weamsferred to the CSMC 2010-1R Trust.

In addition, during the quarter ended March 31,12@te recorded non-recourse financing with thirdypmvestors related to re-
securitizations executed in prior periods. Werfited through these transactions $306.6 million ARAated fixed rate bonds with third
party investors for net proceeds of $311.0 milli@uring the quarter ended March 31, 2010, we fiearthrough these transactions $225.8
million of AAA-rated fixed rate bonds with third g& investors for net proceeds of $227.4 million.

Management Fee and General and Administrative Exges

We paid FIDAC a management fee of $12.8 million &8d. million for the quarters ended March 31, 2@hd 2010,
respectively. The management fee is based ontockislders’ equity and the increase in the manageifee for the quarter ended March
31, 2011 as compared to the quarter ended MarcR(D, resulted from the increased equity due tatimpletion of secondary offerings of
common stock during 2010.

General and administrative (or G&A) expenses, iditlg the provision for loan losses, were $2.9 wrilland $1.8 million for the
quarters ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectivel&A expenses increased during the period dimapily to an increase in our loan
loss provision.
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Total expenses as a percentage of average totbassre 0.68% and 0.73% for the quarters endedhvatl, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The decrease in total expensegascantage of average total assets is the resait ofcrease in the asset base due to the
completion of three secondary offerings of commimels during 2010.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011 we reimgglFIDAC approximately $146,000 for our pro ratatjpm of rent, telephone,
utilities, office furniture, equipment, machinemydother office, internal and overhead expenséd@AC and its affiliates required for our
operations. During the quarter ended March 31, 2BIDAC waived its right to request reimbursementrf the Company for these expenses.

The table below shows our total management feeG#l expenses as compared to average total asst@vanage equity for the
quarters ended March 31, 2011, December 31, 2G&fe®ber 30, 2010, June 30, 2010, and March 31 a6d for the year ended Decenr
31, 2010.

Management Fees, Loan Loss Provision and G&A Exgeard Operating Expense Ra

Total Managemer  Total Managemer

Fee, Loan Loss Fee, Loan Loss
Total Managemer Provision and Provision and
Fee, Loan Loss G&A G&A
Provision and Expenses/Total Expenses/Average
G&A Expenses Assets Equity
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( $ 15,67¢ 0.6&8% 1.74%
For the year ended December 31, 2 $ 49,62¢ 0.78% 1.71%
For the quarter ended December 31, 2 $ 14,45¢ 0.7¢% 1.76¢%
For the quarter ended September 30, - $ 13,59¢ 0.771% 1.87%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 $ 11,69¢ 0.72% 1.8(%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( $ 9,88( 0.72% 1.7<%

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equity

Our net income was $163.4 million and $125.6 millfor the quarters ended March 31, 2011 and 2@Kpectively. The table
below shows our net interest income, gains (lossesgle of assets, unrealized gains (losses)terest rate swaps, total expenses, income
tax, each as a percentage of average equity, anetilrn on average equity for the quarters endactivid1, 2011, December 31, 2010,
September 30, 2010, June 30, 2010, and March 3D, 20d the year ended December 31, 2010. Ounretuaverage equity decreased from
22.73% for the quarter ended March 31, 2010 to98.6or the quarter ended March 31, 2011 due tantrease in realized losses on
principal write-downs from $949,000 for the quaseded March 31, 2010 to $19.5 million for the d¢eimended March 31, 2011.

Components of Return on Average Eqt

Realized
Gains Unrealized
(Losses) on  Gains (Losses
Sales, Credit on Interest Total Return
Net Interest Losses and Rate Expense: Income on
Income/Averag OTTI/Average Swaps/Averac  Average Tax/Averagr Average
Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity
(Ratios have been annualize

For the quarter ended March 31, 2( 20.96% (2.15%) 1.1(% (1.74%) (0.08%) 18.09%
For the year ended December 31, 2 20.71% (0.34%) (0.34%) (1.71%) (0.03%) 18.3"%
For the quarter ended December 31, 2 18.7:% 0.22% 1.8(% (1.7€%) 0.0(%  18.9¢%
For the quarter ended September 30, - 21.42% (0.1%) (1.87%) (1.87%) (0.1%) 17.3%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 23.7¢% (1.11%) (1.73%) (1.8(%) 0.0(%  19.14%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( 25.09% (0.57%) 0.0(% (1.79%) 0.0(% 22.79%
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requeats, including ongoing commitments to repay aurdwings, fund and mainte
RMBS, mortgage loans and other assets, pay dividand other general business needs. Our prineipeites of capital and funds for
additional investments primarily include earningsf our investments, borrowings under securitizetiand re-securitizations, repurchase
agreements and other financing facilities, and @eds from equity offerings. We expect these sauntdinancing will be sufficient to meet
our short-term liquidity needs.

We expect to continue to borrow funds in the fofmepurchase agreements and, subject to markeftamrs] other types of
financing. The terms of the repurchase transad¢t@mowings under our master repurchase agreergentsally conform to the terms in the
standard master repurchase agreement as publighbd Becurities Industry and Financial Marketsokgation, or SIFMA, as to repayment,
margin requirements and the segregation of allrdezsiwe have initially sold under the repurchtas@saction. In addition, each lender
typically requires that we include supplementaingiand conditions to the standard master repurcdm@eement. Typical supplemental tel
and conditions include changes to the margin maartee requirements, required haircuts, and purgbrése maintenance requirements,
requirements that all controversies related ta¢pairchase agreement be litigated in a particukésdiction and cross default
provisions. These provisions will differ for eaghour lenders and will not be determined untilevgage in a specific repurchase transac

For our short-term (one year or less) and long-tégmidity, which include investing and compliane&h collateralization
requirements under our repurchase agreements(gléudged collateral decreases in value or ineateof margin calls created by
prepayments of the pledged collateral), we alsparlthe cash flow from investments, primarily ntantprincipal and interest payments tc
received on our RMBS and whole mortgage loans, flashfrom the sale of securities as well as aniynpry securities offerings authorized
by our board of directors.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe ssets will be sufficient to enat
us to meet anticipated short-term (one year o) legsdity requirements such as to fund our inmestt activities, pay fees under our
management agreement, fund our distributions tckbtalders and pay general corporate expenses. Howawecline in the value of our
collateral or a decrease in prepayment rates Suirdtg below our expectations could cause a terapoliquidity shortfall due to the timing
the necessary margin calls on the financing arnauegés and the actual receipt of the cash relatedrteipal paydowns. If our cash resources
are at any time insufficient to satisfy our liqujdrequirements, we may have to sell investmentssaure debt or additional equity securities in
a common stock offering. If required, the sale MBS or whole mortgage loans at prices lower thairtbarrying value would result in
losses and reduced income.

Our ability to meet our long-term (greater tham gear) liquidity and capital resource requiremevitsbe subject to obtaining
additional debt financing and equity capital. Sabje our maintaining our qualification as a REEveell as market conditions, we expect to
use a number of sources to finance our investmirtsiding repurchase agreements, warehouse fasjlgecuritization, commercial paper
and term financing CDOs. Such financing will degp@m market conditions for capital raises and li@itvestment of any proceeds. If we
unable to renew, replace or expand our sourcesafding on substantially similar terms, it may @an adverse effect on our business and
results of operations. Upon liquidation, holder®of debt securities and shares of preferred sitaddenders with respect to other borrowi
will receive a distribution of our available asspt®r to the holders of our common stock.

We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&ty3 million and $44.2 million at March 31, 201ide2010, respectively. Our
cash and cash equivalents decreased due to nomaxdkdy fluctuations in cash balances relatedhéotiming of principal and interest
payments, repayments of debt, and asset purchadesakes.

Our operating activities provided net cash of agpnately $103.0 million and $75.3 million for thei@rters ended March 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively. The cash provided by adipgractivities increased due to the increase trimterest income earned by the portfolio
which resulted from the increase in interest eagrm@issets to $10.2 billion in investments at Marth2®11 as compared to $6.0 billion at
March 31, 2010.

Our investing activities used net cash of $2.lIdsiland $39.8 million for the quarters ended Ma3&h2011 and 2010,
respectively. During the quarter ended March 81,12 we utilized cash to purchase $3.1 billiongnwities which were offset by proceeds
from asset sales of $646.4 million and principglasgments of $355.6 million. During the quarterethdlarch 31, 2010 we utilized cash to
purchase $442.9 million in securities which werseifby proceeds from asset sales that providerbaippately $44.2 million and principal
repayments of $358.9 million. The increase in agsdd for investing activities is the result of osimg additional capital raised during 2010.
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Our financing activities provided net cash of $2illon and used net cash of $15.5 million for thearters ended March 31, 2011
2010, respectively. The quarter ended March 311 26flected net proceeds on repurchase agreewfebsl billion as compared to net
payments of $289.2 million for the quarter endedde81, 2010. In addition, the quarter ended M&th2011 reflected net proceeds from
securitized debt borrowings of $311.0 million aspared to $498.7 million for the quarter ended M&t, 2010. The increase in cash
provided by financing activities is from the utdizon of repurchase agreements to finance assethg@sgs. Recourse debt increased to 1.:
March 31, 2011 as compared to 0.7:1 at March 31020

At March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the reimgimaturities of repurchase agreements for RMB8dsented below.

December 3:
March 31, 201 201(
(dollars in thousand:

Overnight $ 279,26. $ -
1-30 days 1,340,89 232,26!
30 to 59 day: 1,836,42 970,39:
60 to 89 day: 413,82. 545,44,
90 to 119 day - 60,69¢
Greater than or equal to 120 d: - -
Total $ 3,870,40° $ 1,808,79

We are not required to maintain any specific dekgguity ratio as we believe the appropriate levefagéhe particular assets we i
financing depends on the credit quality and riskhoke assets. At March 31, 2011 and Decembe&@®1 our total debt was approximately
$6.2 billion and $4.1 billion, which representedebt-to-equity ratio of approximately 1.8:1 and:1,Xespectively. We include repurchase
agreements, securitized debt, and securitized dehtretained in the numerator of our debt-to-gqutio and stockholders’ equity as the
denominator.

Stockholders’ Equity

On January 28, 2011, we entered into an equityiligion agreement with FIDAC and UBS Securitiesd,lor UBS. Through this
agreement, we may sell through UBS, as our salestagp to 125,000,000 shares of our common stookdinary brokers’ transactions at
market prices or other transactions as agreed keatwe and UBS. We did not sell any shares of oomaon stock under the equity
distribution agreement during the quarter endedcki&, 2011.

On September 24, 2009, we implemented a divideindestment and share purchase plan (“DRSPP”). DRSPP provides holders
of record of our common stock an opportunity tcoadtically reinvest all or a portion of their cadibtributions received on common stock in
additional shares of our common stock as well asdake optional cash payments to purchase shams @bmmon stock. Persons who are
not already stockholders may also purchase our ammstock under the plan through optional cash paysnerhe DRSPP is administered by
the Administrator, The Bank of New York Mellon. Dug the quarter ended March 31, 2011, we raised $80 by issuing 73,567 shares
through the DRSPP. During the quarter ended Maigt2010 no shares were issued under the DRSPP.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, we dedldiréidends to common shareholders totaling $148llfon or $0.14 per
share. During the quarter ended March 31, 201Gjeetared dividends to common shareholders tot&iri.8 million or $0.17 per share.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstarangf March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.
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Related Party Transactions
Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managengee¢ment with FIDAC, pursuant to which FIDAC isidatl to receive a
management fee and, in certain circumstancesirartation fee and reimbursement of certain expeasafescribed in the management
agreement. Such fees and expenses do not hadeafixkdeterminable payments. The management feg/able quarterly in arrears in an
amount equal to 1.50% per annum, calculated gurtdrour stockholders’ equity (as defined in thanagement agreement). FIDAC uses
the proceeds from its management fee in part tacpaypensation to its officers and employees whuwitlosstanding that certain of them also
are our officers, receive no cash compensatiortitjréeom us. The management fee will be reduted not below zero, by our proportion
share of any CDO base management fees FIDAC rec#ivannection with the CDOs in which we investsdéd on the percentage of equity
we hold in such CDOs.

Financing Arrangements with Affiliates

In April 2009, we entered into a Securities Indystnd Financial Markets Association standard prepd form Master Repurchase
Agreement with RCap Securities, Inc., a wholly od/sebsidiary of Annaly. This standard agreemeetsdwt contain any sort of liquidity,
net worth or other similar types of positive or athige covenants. Rather, the agreement contairenamts that require the buyer and selle
securities to deliver collateral or securities, amdilar covenants which are customary in masteumehase agreements. At March 31, 2011
and December 31, 2010 we had no financing underatiiieement. We have been in compliance withogkigants of this agreement since we
entered into this agreement.

In March 2008, we entered into a Securities Inguatid Financial Markets Association standard preed form Master Repurchase
Agreement with Annaly. This standard agreemensadua contain any sort of liquidity, net worth dher similar types of positive or negat
covenants. Rather, the agreement contains cowetiamitrequire the buyer and seller of securitiedediver collateral or securities, and sim
covenants which are customary in master repurchgigements. At March 31, 2011 and December 31 2@lhad no financing under this
agreement. We have been in compliance with akkoawts of this agreement since we entered intatgrsement.

Restricted Stock Grants

We granted 1,301,000 shares of restricted stodkitdManager’'s employees and members of our boadét@ttors during the year
ended December 31, 2008. During the quarter entdadh 31, 2011 and 2010, 31,600 and 32,225 sharestoicted stock we had awarded
to our Manager’'s employees vested and 562 andi8%®s were forfeited or cancelled, respectivelye dd not grant any incentive awards
during the quarter ended March 31, 2011. At M&th2011 and 2010 there were approximately 853a0@0999,000 unvested shares of
restricted stock issued to employees of FIDAC, eetipely. For the quarters ended March 31, 2012010, compensation expense less
general and administrative costs associated wittathortization of the fair value of the restricttdck totaled $128,000 and $125,000,
respectively.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following tables summarize our contractual gdgions at March 31, 2011.

March 31, 201:

Greater Than

Within One One to Three Three to Five or Equal to

Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousand:

Repurchase agreements for RM $ 3,870,40 $ - 8 - $ - 8 3,870,40
Securitized dek 614,59: 916,09( 373,83( 427,73: 2,332,24!
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase
agreements (1 1,192 - - - 1,192
Interest expense on securitized debi 101,97: 135,35¢ 80,27( 222,94: 540,53t
Total $ 4,588,16. $ 1,051,44. $ 454,10 $ 650,67 $ 6,744,38
(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effsaifaMarch
31, 2011

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolidi@tetities or financial partnerships, such as iestivften referred to as structured
finance or special purpose entities, which wouldehlaeen established for the purpose of facilitatifidoalance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. Furtivez,have not guaranteed any obligations of uncaeeld entities nor do we have any
commitment or intent to provide funding to any sedciities.
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Capital Resources
At March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, we hachai@rial commitments or capital expenditures.
Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetedsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxamteme, determined without
regard to the deduction for dividends paid andudiclg any net capital gains. We intend to pay ragguarterly dividends to our
stockholders. Before we pay any dividend, whetbet£.S. federal income tax purposes or otherwisgchvwould only be paid out of
available cash to the extent permitted under marfting facilities, we must first meet any opemtiaquirements and scheduled debt service
on our financing facilities and other debt payable.

Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities aredngst rate sensitive in nature. As a result, isteres and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chamgé@nterest rates do not necessarily correlati inflation rates or changes in inflation
rates. Our consolidated financial statements apagved in accordance with GAAP and our distributioill be determined by our board of
directors consistent with our obligation to distitié to our stockholders at least 90% of our REKRlde income on an annual basis in order to
maintain our REIT qualification; in each case, adtivities and balance sheet are measured withergfe to historical cost and/or fair market
value without considering inflation.
Subsequent Events

None.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The primary components of our market risk are eeldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésk, market value risk and real
estate risk. While we do not seek to avoid risk plately, we believe the risk can be quantified froistorical experience and we seek to
actively manage that risk, to earn sufficient congagion to justify taking those risks and to mamwapital levels consistent with the risks
undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with mvestments and face more credit risk on assetswn which are rated below
“AAA”. The credit risk related to these investmismpertains to the ability and willingness of trerowers to pay, which is assessed before
credit is granted or renewed and periodically neneig throughout the loan or security term. We belithat residual loan credit quality is
primarily determined by the borrowers’ credit ptedi and loan characteristics. FIDAC uses a compisahe credit review process. FIDAC's
analysis of loans includes borrower profiles, a#i a®valuation and appraisal data. FIDAC uses amagating factors such as liquid assets,
low loan to value ratios and job stability in evating loans. FIDAGS resources include a proprietary portfolio manag@mystem, as well
third party software systems. FIDAC utilizes adhparty due diligence firm to perform an independerderwriting review to insure
compliance with existing guidelines. FIDAC selecians for review predicated on risk-based critetieh as loan-to-value, borrower’s credit
score(s) and loan size. FIDAC also outsources wwritarg services to review higher risk loans, eitdee to borrower credit profiles or
collateral valuation issues. In addition to statetsampling techniques, FIDAC creates adverseéittamd valuation samples, which we
individually review. FIDAC rejects loans that f&il conform to our standards. FIDAC accepts onlyéhlmans which meet our underwriting
criteria. Once we own a loan, FIDAC's surveillamrecess includes ongoing analysis through our jEtgry data warehouse and servicer
files. Additionally, the non-Agency RMBS and othABS which we acquire for our portfolio are reviewsdFIDAC to ensure that they
satisfy our risk based criteria. FIDAC’s reviewran-Agency RMBS and other ABS includes utilizing iroprietary portfolio management
system. FIDAC's review of non-Agency RMBS and otA®S is based on quantitative and qualitative asialgf the risk-adjusted returns on
non-Agency RMBS and other ABS present.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many @ast including governmental, monetary and tax pedicdomestic and international
economic and political considerations and othetofacbeyond our control. We are subject to interast risk in connection with our
investments and our related debt obligations, whiehgenerally repurchase agreements, warehousefscsecuritization, commercial paf
and term financing CDOs. Our repurchase agreenagntsvarehouse facilities may be of limited duratioat are periodically refinanced at
current market rates. We intend to mitigate thék through utilization of derivative contracts,marily interest rate swap agreements.

Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Income

Our operating results depend, in large part, ofedihces between the income from our investmerdanborrowing costs. Most of
our warehouse facilities and repurchase agreenpeotde financing based on a floating rate of iegticalculated on a fixed spread over
LIBOR. The fixed spread varies depending on the typunderlying asset which collateralizes therfitiag. Accordingly, the portion of our
portfolio which consists of floating interest ragsets will be match-funded utilizing our expecedrces of short-term financing, while our
fixed interest rate assets will not be match-fund@ating periods of rising interest rates, the baiing costs associated with our investments
tend to increase while the income earned on oedfirterest rate investments may remain substhntiathanged. This will result in a
narrowing of the net interest spread between tlatee assets and borrowings and may even resiaisses. Further, during this portion of the
interest rate and credit cycles, defaults couldease and result in credit losses to us, whichdcadlersely affect our liquidity and operating
results. Such delinquencies or defaults could ladés@ an adverse effect on the spread betweenstiggiening assets and interest-bearing
liabilities. Hedging techniques are partly basedssumed levels of prepayments of our fixed-ratehaorid adjustable-rate mortgage loans
and RMBS. If prepayments are slower or faster tmsumed, the life of the mortgage loans and RMBSowilonger or shorter, which would
reduce the effectiveness of any hedging strategéesiay use and may cause losses on such trangadiiedging strategies involving the use
of derivative securities are highly complex and rpayduce volatile returns.
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Interest Rate Effects on Fair Value

Another component of interest rate risk is thea@fthanges in interest rates will have on thevalue of the assets we acquire. We
face the risk that the fair value of our asset$ iwdrease or decrease at different rates thanothadrr liabilities, including our hedging
instruments. We primarily assess our interestrniakeby estimating the duration of our assets &edduration of our liabilities. Duration
essentially measures the market price volatilitfircdncial instruments as interest rates changeg®verally calculate duration using various
financial models and empirical data. Different misdind methodologies can produce different duratiembers for the same securities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimigrest rates on fair value can change signifigamhen interest rates change
beyond 100 basis points from current levels. Thoeegfthe volatility in the fair value of our assetaild increase significantly when interest
rates change beyond 100 basis points. In addibibrer factors impact the fair value of our intemage-sensitive investments and hedging
instruments, such as the shape of the yield cuneeket expectations as to future interest rate gdsiand other market conditions.
Accordingly, in the event of changes in actualriiest rates, the change in the fair value of ouetassould likely differ from that shown abc
and such difference might be material and adverseit stockholders.

Interest Rate Cap Risk

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which thdetging mortgages are
typically subject to periodic and lifetime intereate caps and floors, which limit the amount bycltthe security’s interest yield may change
during any given period. However, our borrowingtsgsursuant to our financing agreements will nostgject to similar restrictions.
Therefore, in a period of increasing interest ratgerest rate costs on our borrowings could iaseawithout limitation by caps, while the
interest-rate yields on our adjustalpégée mortgage loans and RMBS would effectivelyitvetéd. This problem will be magnified to the ext:
we acquire adjustable-rate RMBS that are not basedortgages which are fully indexed. In additittvg mortgages or the underlying
mortgages in an RMBS may be subject to periodiemayt caps that result in some portion of the isteloeing deferred and added to the
principal outstanding. This could result in ouragt of less cash income on our adjustable-ratégages or RMBS than we need in order to
pay the interest cost on our related borrowinggseéhfactors could lower our net interest incomeamise a net loss during periods of rising
interest rates, which would harm our financial déind, cash flows and results of operations.

Interest Rate Mismatch Risk

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitiohtybrid adjustable-rate mortgages and RMBS witirdwings that, after the effect
of hedging, have interest rates based on indicéseypricing terms similar to, but of somewhat shortetumities than, the interest rate indi
and re-pricing terms of the mortgages and RMBS sThumost cases the interest rate indices andieagp terms of our mortgage assets and
our funding sources will not be identical, theregating an interest rate mismatch between assdtlabilities. Therefore, our cost of funds
would likely rise or fall more quickly than wouldipearnings rate on assets. During periods of dhgrigterest rates, such interest rate
mismatches could negatively impact our financialdition, cash flows and results of operations. Titigate interest rate mismatches, we r
utilize the hedging strategies discussed above aDalysis of risks is based on FIDA®xperience, estimates, models and assumptiopse
analyses rely on models which utilize estimatefainfvalue and interest rate sensitivity. Actuabeemic conditions or implementation of
investment decisions by our management may prodastats that differ significantly from the estimat@nd assumptions used in our models
and the projected results shown in this Form 10-Q.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolion@luding interest rate swaps) may be adverselygtteduring any period as a result
of changing interest rates. The following tablafifies the potential changes in net interestime@nd portfolio value should interest rates
go up or down 25, 50, and 75 basis points, assuthmgield curves of the rate shocks will be patdth each other and the current yield
curve. All changes in income and value are measaseercentage changes from the projected ne¢shi@come and portfolio value at the
base interest rate scenario. The base interesscahario assumes interest rates at March 31,&@d arious estimates regarding prepay!
and all activities are made at each level of ratiek. Actual results could differ significantlyofn these estimates.
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Projected Percentage Projected Percentage
Change in Net Interest Change in Portfolio

Change in Interest Ra Income Value
-75 Basis Point (11.319%) 3.5¢%
-50 Basis Point (8.77%) 2.41%
-25 Basis Point (6.24%) 1.22%
Base Interest Ra - -

+25 Basis Point 1.18% (1.24%)
+50 Basis Point 1.62% (2.50%)
+75 Basis Point 2.0&% (3.7%%)

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesestments, premiums and discounts on such invessmeéihte amortized or
accreted against interest income. In general, ere@se in prepayment rates will accelerate the @ation of purchase premiums, thereby
reducing the interest income earned on the invesn€onversely, discounts on such investmenta@eted into interest income. In
general, an increase in prepayment rates will acatd the accretion of purchase discounts, thargbgasing the interest income earned on
the investments.

Extension Risk

FIDAC computes the projected weighted-averagediifeur investments based on assumptions regardanggte at which the
borrowers will prepay the underlying mortgagesgémeral, when fixed-rate or hybrid adjustable-ratetgage loans or RMBS are acquired
with borrowings, we may, but are not required teeinto an interest rate swap agreement or ¢tbéging instrument that effectively fixes
our borrowing costs for a period close to the andited average life of the fixed-rate portion of tielated assets. This strategy is designed to
protect us from rising interest rates because totving costs are fixed for the duration of theefi-rate portion of the related
assets. However, if prepayment rates decreasesing interest rate environment, the life of theed-rate portion of the related assets could
extend beyond the term of the swap agreement er bddging instrument. This could have a negatiygaict on our results from operations,
as borrowing costs would no longer be fixed afterénd of the hedging instrument while the incoaraed on the hybrid adjustable-rate
assets would remain fixed. This situation may absese the market value of our hybrid adjustable-a@asets to decline, with little or no
offsetting gain from the related hedging transaxgidn extreme situations, we may be forced toasdets to maintain adequate liquidity,
which could cause us to incur losses.

Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind lsses excluded from earnings and
reported in other comprehensive income. The estidhair value of these securities fluctuates prilpaiue to changes in interest rates,
prepayment speeds, market liquidity, credit quakityd other factors. Generally, in a rising ins¢rate environment, the estimated fair value
of these securities would be expected to decreaswersely, in a decreasing interest rate envirantiee estimated fair value of these
securities would be expected to increase. As naKatility increases or liquidity decreases, faie value of our investments may be
adversely impacted.

Real Estate Market Risk

We own assets secured by real property and mayreahproperty directly in the future. Residenpiabperty values are subject to
volatility and may be affected adversely by a nundddactors, including, but not limited to, natanregional and local economic conditions
(which may be adversely affected by industry slowds and other factors); local real estate conditi@ch as an oversupply of housing);
changes or continued weakness in specific indsstgynents; construction quality, age and designpdeaphic factors; and retroactive
changes to building or similar codes. In additidecreases in property values reduce the valuesafditateral and the potential proceeds
available to a borrower to repay our loans, whighl@ also cause us to suffer losses.
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Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REfatus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential
mortgage loans, RMBS, and other assets and redafetdagainst the effects of major interest ratengha. We generally seek to manage our
risk by:

« monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the rasgex and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

« attempting to structure our financing agreementsate a range of different maturities, terms, aiatipns and interest rate
adjustment period:

« using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, ogiaaps, floors and forward sales to adjust therédst rate sensitivity of our
investments and our borrowing

« using securitization financing to lower averaget @igunds relative to shoterm financing vehicles further allowing us to rieeethe
benefit of attractive terms for an extended pedbtime in contrast to short term financing and unigy dates of the investments
included in the securitization; al

« actively managing, on an aggregate basis, theestteate indices, interest rate adjustment perais,gross reset margins of our
investments and the interest rate indices and ex@rg periods of our financing

Our efforts to manage our assets afnilitias are concerned with the timing and magrétod the re-pricing of assets and
liabilities. We attempt to control risks assocthteéith interest rate movements. Methods for euviigainterest rate risk include an analysis of
our interest rate sensitivity “gap”, which is thée&rence between interest-earning assets ancesttdearing liabilities maturing or re-pricing
within a given time period. A gap is considereaipee when the amount of interest-rate sensitsgets exceeds the amount of interest-rate
sensitive liabilities. A gap is considered negativhen the amount of interest-rate sensitive liddsl exceeds interest-rate sensitive
assets. During a period of rising interest radesegative gap would tend to adversely affectmetrést income, while a positive gap would
tend to result in an increase in net interest ireomuring a period of falling interest rates, gative gap would tend to result in an increas
net interest income, while a positive gap woulditemaffect net interest income adversely. Becdaiféerent types of assets and liabilities
with the same or similar maturities may react défely to changes in overall market rates or cao$, changes in interest rates may affect
net interest income positively or negatively eviean institution were perfectly matched in eachumiat category.

The following table sets forth the estimated m&yuoi re-pricing of our interest-earning assets imterest-bearing liabilities at
March 31, 2011. The amounts of assets and liegsilghown within a particular period were deterrdiimeaccordance with the contractual
terms of the assets and liabilities, except adplsteate loans, and securities are included irp#hvéd in which their interest rates are first
scheduled to adjust and not in the period in whidy mature and does include the effect of thedésterate swaps. The interest rate
sensitivity of our assets and liabilities in thbléacould vary substantially if based on actuappsenent experience.

Within 3 1Yearto3 Greater than 3

Months 3-12 Months Years Years Total
Rate sensitive asse $ 15,821,48 $ 1,131,79. $ 1,068,94 $ 1,117,217 $  19,139,42
Cash equivalent 16,29¢ - - - 16,29¢
Total rate sensitive asse¢ 15,837,77 1,131,79: 1,068,94 1,117,21 19,155,72
Rate sensitive liabilitie 3,018,62 318,45¢ 409,50 1,589,73! 5,336,31!
Interest rate sensitivity ge $ 12,819,214 % 813,33 $ 659,43t $ (472,51) $ 13,819,40
Cumulative rate sensitivity gé $ 1281914 $ 1363248 $ 1429191 $ 13,819,40
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap
a
percentage of total rate sensitive as 67% 71% 75% 72%
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Our analysis of risks is based on our manager'sgapce, estimates, models and assumptions. Hmadgses rely on models which
utilize estimates of fair value and interest ramsstivity. Actual economic conditions or implent&ton of investment decisions by our
manager may produce results that differ signifilyainbm the estimates and assumptions used in aatets and the projected results show
the above tables and in this Form 10-Q. Theseg/a@slcontain certain forward-looking statementsamdsubject to the safe harbor statement

set forth under the heading, “Special Note Regaréiorward-Looking Statements.”
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifjor CEO and Chief Financial Officer, or CFO,iesved and evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of oseldsure controls and procedures (as defined ie B8&-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the
Securities Exchange Act) as of the end of the pesavered by this quarterly report. Based on téeiew and evaluation, the CEO and CFO
have concluded that our current disclosure conamtsprocedures, as designed and operating, (¥) effactive in ensuring that information
regarding the Company and its subsidiaries is rkade/n to our management, including our CEO and CiCappropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure and (2gvedfiective in providing reasonable assuranceittiatmation the Company must disclos:
its periodic reports under the Securities Exchaketas recorded, processed, summarized and repuiitath the time periods prescribed by
the SEC’s rules and forms.

There have been no changes in our “internal cooirer financial reporting” (as defined in Rule 1Ba() under the Securities

Exchange Act) that occurred during the period cestdyy this quarterly report that has materiallyetiéd, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal controls over financial repogt
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we may be involved in variousiicls and legal actions arising in the ordinary sewf business. In the opinion
management, the ultimate disposition of these msattédl not have a material adverse effect on amsolidated financial statements.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information set forth imstreport, you should carefully consider the feztiscussed in Part I, "ltem 1A. R
Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for $fear ended December 31, 2010, which could matg@diéct our business, financial
condition or future results. The information preseibelow updates and should be read in conjunetitinthe risk factors and information
disclosed in that Form 10-K.

We depend on third-party service providers, inclngimortgage servicers, for a variety of servicelted to our non-Agency
RMBS and whole mortgage loans we may acquire. We, énerefore, subject to the risks associated wtind-party service providers.

We depend on a variety of services provided byltparty service providers related to our non-AgeR&§BS and whole mortgage
loans we may acquire. We rely on the mortgage sersiwho service the mortgage loans backing ourAgency RMBS to, among other
things, collect principal and interest paymentgteunderlying mortgages and perform loss mitigasiervices. Our mortgage servicers and
other service providers to our n&gency RMBS, such as trustees, bond insurance geoviand custodians, may not perform in a manrae
promotes our interests. In addition, recent legihaintended to reduce or prevent foreclosuresudin, among other things, loan
modifications may reduce the value of mortgage ddaacking our non-Agency RMBS or whole mortgagesothat we acquire. Mortgage
servicers may be incentivized by the Federal gawent to pursue such loan modifications, as welbasearance plans and other actions
intended to prevent foreclosure, even if such lmadlifications and other actions are not in the bestests of the beneficial owners of the
mortgage loans. In addition to the recent legistathat creates financial incentives for mortgagmlservicers to modify loans and take other
actions that are intended to prevent foreclosuegsslation has recently been adopted that creasade harbor from liability to creditors for
servicers that undertake loan modifications an@o#ttions that are intended to prevent foreclasutmally, recent laws delay the initiation
or completion of foreclosure proceedings on spedifipes of residential mortgage loans (some foniged period of time), or otherwise lin
the ability of mortgage servicers to take actidra tnay be essential to preserve the value of tivégaige loans underlying the mortgage
servicing rights. Any such limitations are likely tause delayed or reduced collections from moaigagnd generally increase servicing ci
As a result of these recent legislative actions ntortgage loan servicers on which we rely maypeotorm in our best interests or up to our
expectations. If our third-party service providéesnot perform as expected, as highlighted in reperss reports concerning certain
foreclosure proceedings and investigations, ouiniess, financial condition and results of operagiand ability to make distributions to our
shareholders may be materially adversely affected.

Item 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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ltem 6. EXHIBITS
Exhibits:

The exhibits required by this item are set fortttlma Exhibit Index attached hereto

EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit Description
Number
3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chéntievestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1he Company’s

Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Forbd §File No. 333-145525) filed on September 2Q2and
incorporated herein by referenc

3.2 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentpgwation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company'sgert on Form 8-K
filed on May 28, 2009 and incorporated hereindference

3.3 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentiwation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’sp@e on Form 8-K
filed on November 5, 2010 and incorporated herginelierence)

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investi@orporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the ComyarRegistration

Statement on Amendment No. 2 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on November 5, 2007 and inccajed herein
by reference)

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimexestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @@mpany’s
Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Forbi $File No. 333-145525) filed on September 2Q7228nd
incorporated herein by referenc

31.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Eutiee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to Section 302 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of A. Alexandra Denahan, CHi@fiancial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant tet®a 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Extiee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 9€6&darban«Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of A. Alexandra Denahan, Chidriancial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant toll8.C. Section 1350 as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 101.INS XBRL Instance Document

Exhibit 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docume

Exhibit 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docume

Exhibit 101.DEF XBRL Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas@&ument Created

Exhibit 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docume

Exhibit 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Docum

* Submitted electronically herewith. Attachediashibit 101 to this report are the following docurteformatted in XBRL (Extensible
Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolidatedetants of Financial Condition at March 31, 2011guklited) and December 31, 2010
(Derived from the audited consolidated statemeifinaicial condition at December 31, 2010); (ii)rSolidated Statements of Operations
Comprehensive Income (Unaudited) for the quarteded March 31, 2011 and 2010; (iii) ConsolidateateShents of Stockholders' Equity
(Unaudited) for the quarters ended March 31, 201L2010; (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Fidvraudited) for the quarters ended
March 31, 2011 and 2010; and (v) Notes to Const@i&inancial Statements (Unaudited) for the quameled March 31, 2011. Users of
data are advised pursuant to Rule 406T of Regul&id that this interactive data file is deemedfitetl or part of a registration statement or
prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 o$twmurities Act of 1933, is deemed not filed forgmses of section 18 of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934, and otherwise is not sulifetiibility under these sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedetimen duly authorized.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: /s/ Matthew Lambias
Matthew Lambias:
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
May 9, 2011

By: /s/ A. Alexandra Denaha
A. Alexandra Denaha
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial
Officer)
May 9, 2011
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Matthew Lambiase, certify that:
| have reviewed this quarterly reportForm 10-Q of Chimera Investment Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleadir
with respect to the period covered by this reg

Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjy@nd other financial information included ifstteport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this repol

The registrant’s other certifying officerdanare responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18ayHnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurée tdesigne
under our supervision, to ensure that material rmédion relating to the registrant, including itensolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withose entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report i
being preparec

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finahoiporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenadsurance regarding the reliability of finaneigporting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presédntéhis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discéosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegpeovered by th
report based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thgistrants internal control over financial reporting thatoaed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrargt’internal control over financial reportil
and

The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent ei@uaf internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controlerofinancia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrand’ ability to record, process, summarize and rt
financial information; ani

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significdatin the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: May 9, 201.

/s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambias

Chief Executive Officer and President (Principakcutive
Officer)




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, A. Alexandra Denahan, certify that:
| have reviewed this quarterly reémar Form 10-Q of Chimera Investment Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleadir
with respect to the period covered by this reg

Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjy@nd other financial information included ifstteport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this repol

The registrant’s other certifying officerdanare responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18ayHnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a. Designeduch disclosure controls and procedures or causeld disclosure controls and procedures to be dee
under our supervision, to ensure that material rmédion relating to the registrant, including itensolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withose entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report i
being preparec

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finahoiporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenadsurance regarding the reliability of finaneigporting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presédntéhis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discéosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegpeovered by th
report based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thgistrants internal control over financial reporting thatoaed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrargt’internal control over financial reportil
and

The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent ei@uaf internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controlgrofinancia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversaffect the registrars’ ability to record, process, summarize
report financial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significd@tin the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: May 9, 201.

/sl A. Alexandra Denaha

A. Alexandra Denaha

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige




Exhibit 32.1

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended

March 31, 2011 to be filed with Securities and Eamde Commission on or about the date hereof (tlepdR”), |, Matthew Lambiase,

President, and Chief Executive Officer of the Compaertify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarka@&ley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of 1
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coveyethe Report

It is not intended that this statement be deemédxtiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934.

/s/ Matthew Lambias:

Matthew Lambias:

Chief Executive Officer and Preside
May 9, 2011




Exhibit 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended

March 31, 2011 to be filed with Securities and Eamde Commission on or about the date hereof (tlepdR”), I, A. Alexandra Denahan,

Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of the Comparertify, pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbaDekey Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of 1
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coveyethe Report

It is not intended that this statement be deemédxtiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934.

/s A. Alexandra Denahe
A. Alexandra Denaha
Chief Financial Officel
May 9, 2011




